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Gordon P. Gullickson
Chairman of PSB Holdings, Inc.
Retired

Formerly President of

Peoples State Bank

Gordon P. Connor
President
Connor Management Corp.

Patrick L. Crooks

Chairman of Peoples State Bank
Attorney & President

Crooks, Low, & Connell, 5.C.

William J. Fish
President
BILCO, Inc. {(McDonald’s Franchisee)

Charles A. Ghidorzi
President

C.A. Ghidorzi, Inc.
Structural Systems, Inc.

David K. Kopperud
President & CEO
Peoples State Bank

Thomas R. Polzer
President
M&J Sports, Inc.

William M. Reif
President and CEO

Wausau Coated Products, Inc,

s A Biser, Gardon 70 SR, RN BCTRTs

Thomas A. Riiser
Retired

Formerly President of
Riiser Oil Co., Inc.

John H. Sonnentag
Chairman of the Board
County Materials Corporation

DIRECTORS EMERITUS
Leonard C. Britten
Eugene Witter
Lawrence Hanz, Jr.
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Summary Statements Years ended December 31,

Of Income 2005 004 00 00 00 000
Net interest income $14,109 $14,089 $13,181 $12,641 $10,959 $9,400
Provision for loan losses 160 855 835 1,110 890 600

Net interest income

after provision for loan losses 13,949 13,234 12,346 11,531 10,069 8,800
Service fees and charges 1,188 1,234 1,282 1,217 1,011 855

Other income 2,280 1,889 2,829 1,831 1,054 591

Total noninterest income 3,468 3,123 4,111 3,048 2,065 1,446
Salarics and employee benefits 6,610 6,189 5,952 4,927 4,419 3,842
Other expenses 4,430 4,786 3,399 3,299 2,896 2,632

Total noninterest expense 11,040 10,975 9,351 8,226 7,315 6,474

Net income before income taxes 6,377 5,382 7,106 6,353 4,819 3,772
Provision for income raxes 2,037 1,856 2,300 1,988 1,453 1,102

Net income $4,340 $3,526 $4,806 $4,365 $3,366 $2,670

Diluted earnings per share $2.52 $2.03 $2.74 $2.48 $1.91 $1.48
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Strawberries & lce Cream Celebrating The Opening United Way Fundraiser
of Our Weston Location
The tradition of Strawberries and Weston’s Open House, in early The United Way fundraiser
Ice Cream continued with over September, gave the Weston consisted of a “tailgate” cookout,
500 free dishes of ice-cream and community a chance fo visit our bake sale, and to top the whole
countless smiles being served. new location, enjoy a brat and thing off, five of our employees
soda, and meet our Weston staff, took a pie-intheface to raise
All proceeds were donated to money for the United Way.
Hurricane Katrina relief. Overall Peoples raised nearly

$18,000.
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“When I think abour Peoples, words thar come to mind are Generous,
Compassionate, Philanthropic. Peoples State Banks generosity allows the
dollars donated to Junior Achievement in Marathon County to be used for
program materials, teacher/volunteer and rec‘ruiting/retention, n turn
reaching more Marathon County students. Peoples State Banks donation
of office space to Junior Achievement has certainly made a great and

unforgettable difference to us.”

‘ Gina Zacho - District Director

Junior Achievement of Wiscansin, lnc. Marcthon County




This past year PSB Holdings, Inc. through Peoples
State Bank exceeded $500 Million in total assets.
Attaining this number wasn't just a milestone, it is
the start of yet another exciting chapter for your
organization. The next chapter will require more
sophisticated approaches, while embracing all the
things we've done right to this point.

Your Board is focused on laying out how we will
maximize future shareholder value over fime by
creating a comprehensive ten-year plan.

The directors and employees of Peoples are
motivated by the extraordinary history of our
locally-owned independent bank and are convinced
the future of this business model is exceptional.

Understanding the future of banking opportunities in
our marketplaces, developing strategies to maximize
these opportunities, and executing them is our focus.

Our vision over the next three years is to reach
high profitability for excellent returns to our
shareholders by fully utilizing all of our resources
to a greater degree.

Your Bank continues to look for future efficiencies

by turning self-assessment efforts into process
improvements and automation. For example, remote
capture and check imaging will change the way
banks and their customers do business in future
years. Therefore, your Bank is formulating strategies
to “stay in the game” in these areas.

This past February in Weston, Peoples opened its
eighth location. Located in the new St. Clare’s
Hospital complex, this site compliments our other
locations perfectly and we look forward to
significant growih at this location in future years.

The primary reason a community bank realizes
greater success and growth is superior customer
service. This year Peoples invested significant time,
expense, and effort info a new initiative called
“Ownership”.

The primary goal of the “Ownership Plan” is to raise
the level of Customer Service at Peoples. As part of
this initiative, our first action is, as employees, to
take responsibility for every customer interaction.
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We will OWN the customer’s experience, giving
our customers, whether they are internal or external,
the highest level of service within our control.

Our Mission Statement is “To be our customer’s most
trusted financial advisor by delivering innovative
products and service excellence through highly
motivated and efficient professionals, focused on
producing shareholder value.” We are simply
getting back to the “basics of customer service”

through “Ownership”.

We feel strongly that our stoff will continue to set
us apart by providing the most reliable, responsive,
speedy, and competent service in the markets

we serve.

PSB Holdings, Inc. earned $4,340,000 ($2.52 per
share) during 2005 compared to $3,526,000
($2.03 per share) in the prior year. The year 2004
included a number of special onetime charges,
including loss on abandonment of the prior home
office. Total assets grew $51 Million during 20035,
an increase of 11% for the year, continuing three
consecutive years of double-digit asset growth.
Despite ongoing investment in people and facilities
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to accommodate growth, PSB delivered a return on
average shareholder equity of 12.39% during 2005
and increased our cash dividend for the 13th
conseculive year reaching a level 26% greater than
that paid five years ago.

We have made a significant commitment to the
future success of Peoples with various initiatives
during the past few years and we look forward
to 2006 with great enthusiasm.

A sincere thank you to our dedicated directors,
employees, and stockholders for their continved
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At Peoples we have been fortunate to have
dedicated individuals that have exemplified the
spirit and foundation of a community bank. In
2005 we said goodbye to three individuals that
truly went above and beyond with their dedication
to Peoples State Bank.

Ken Feldmann

Those that had the opportunity to know Ken can
attest to his dedication of providing personal
customer service no matter what their need. He
helped many businesses get the financial services
they needed to get started while helping many
more find the banking solutions they needed to
continue to grow.

Ken's dedication to his job and his customers was
very evident. He could often be found at the bank
after hours meeting with customers or finishing up
paperwork; whatever it took to get the job done.
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Bill Wagener

Bill offered a level of customer service that helped
to develop several of our largest customer
relationships. Bill entered banking later in life, but
applied lessons learned in business and multiple
church activities in a wonderful manner. Through
his dedication we have all learned additional skills
in providing the highest level of service to
customers.

George Geisler

George was a founding member of Peoples State
Bank’s Board of Directors. He was well known
throughout the Wausau community as a
businessman and generous donor to many
community agencies. George was a man
concerned with others. He diligently worked to
provide opportunities to grow Peoples State Bank
and also worked to promote the Bank to the local
community.

Ken, Bill and George will truly be missed by all.
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PART 1
Item 1. BUSINESS.
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7, contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Forward-looking statements are nol guarantees of performance. If
the risks or uncertainties ever materialize or the assumptions prove incorrect, the results of PSB Holdings,
Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“PSB ") may differ materially from those expressed or implied by
such forward-looking statements and assumptions. All statements other than statements of historical fact
are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may be
identified by, among other things, expressions of beliefs or expectations that certain events may occur or
are anticipated, and projections or statements of expectations. Risks, uncertainties, and assumptions
relating to forward-looking statements include general business and economic conditions, changes in fiscal
and monetary policies, increased competition, changes in customers’ preferences for types and sources of
Jfinancial services, the timely development and acceptance of new products and services, increased costs of
operation (including increased funding costs), changes in laws and regulation that govern PSB's
operations, increases in credit risks and losses, loss of key personnel, unforeseen liabilities arising from
current or prospective claims or litigation, the inability to execute expansion plans, errors in the
application of critical accounting policies, unanticipated adverse decisions by tax authorities, the inability
to pay dividends, lack of marketability of PSB stock, and the effect of certain organizational anti-takeover
provisions. These and other risks, uncertainties, and assumptions are described under the caption “Risk
Factors” in Item 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and from time to time in our other filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission afier the date of this report. PSB assumes no obligation, and does
not intend, to update these forward-looking statements.

Business Operations and Products

PSB Holdings, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation formed in 1995, 1s a one-bank holding company regulated by
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve™) under the authority of the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA™). PSB Holdings, Inc.’s sole business is the
ownership and management of Peoples State Bank, a Wisconsin state chartered bank headquartered in
Wausau, Wisconsin. Since 1962, Peoples State Bank has operated as a community bank and currently
serves customers in the central and northern Wisconsin countics of Marathon, Oneida, and Vilas through a
branch network of 8 retail full-service locations. This Annual Report on Form 10-K describes the business
of PSB Holdings, Inc. and Pcoples State Bank as in effect on December 31, 2005, and any reference to
“PSB" refers to the consolidated or individual operations of PSB Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiary Peoples
State Bank.

PSB’s branch offices are located in the communitics of Wausau, Rib Mountain, Weston, Marathon,
Rhinelander, Minocqua, and Eagle River, Wisconsin. PSB is engaged in genceral commercial and retail
banking and serves individuals, businesses, and governmental units. PSB offers most forms of commercial
lending, including lines and letters of credit, secured and unsecured term loans, cquipment and lease
financing, and commercial mortgage lending. In addition, PSB provides a full range of personal banking
services, including checking accounts, savings and time accounts, installment, credit card, and other
personal loans, as well as mortgage loans. PSB offers both commercial and personal customers automated
teller machines and online computer banking to expand its services to customers on a 24-hour basis.
Commercial customers may use available cash management and lockbox services in addition to merchant




banking products. New services are frequently added to PSB’s commercial and retail banking departments.
PSB offers brokerage services at its Wausau locations, inctuding the sale of annuities, mutual funds, and
other investments to bank customers and the general public.

All of PSB’s products and services are directly or indirectly related to the business of community banking
and all activity is reported as one segment of operations. Therefore, all revenue, profit and loss, and total
asscts are reported in one segment and represent the cntire operations of PSB.

As a community bank, the majority of PSB’s operating revenues continue to come from interest earned on
local loans receivable and its investment securities portfolio. PSB does not have a dependence on any
major customers and collects revenue or obtains funding from approximately 13,000 houscholds and
businesses. The table below shows a breakdown of principal sources of operating revenue.

(dollars in thousands) Interest on loans Interest on securitjes

Years ended December 31, Amount % of revenue Amount % of revenue
2005 $22,347 76.4% $2,944 10.1%
2004 $19,207 75.8% $2,780 11.0%
2003 $17.964 71.4% $2,859 11.4%

As of February 3, 2006, PSB operated with 147 full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees, including 33
employed on a part time basis. None of the employecs is covered by a collective bargaining agreement.
Approximately 126 of the FTE employees serve as sales, customer contact, or customer activity support
personnel, while 21 of the employces serve primarily for administrative and internal purposes.

During the past several years, PSB has pursued a market expansion plan that includes de novo branching
into adjacent market arcas previously identified as offering favorable long-term business prospects. Full-
service bank branches were opened in Eagle River, Rhinelander, and Minocqua, Wisconsin in 2001, 2002,
and 2004 respectively. Tn addition, PSB opened a new full-service branch in Weston, Wisconsin during
March 2005. Management believes opening in adjacent markets capitalizes on existing management
resources and customer relationships and leverages existing stockholder capital for the long-term benefit of
stockholders. However, PSB intends to pursue opportunities to acquire additional bank subsidiaries or
banking offices out of its current market area so that, at any time, it may be engaged in some tentative or
preliminary discussions for such purposes with officers, directors, or principal stockholders of other
holding companics or banks. However, there are no plans, understandings, or arrangements, written or
oral, regarding other acquisitions at this time.

Bank Market Area and Competition

There is a mix of retail, manufacturing, agricultural, and service businesses in the areas served by PSB.
PSB has substantial competition in its market areas. Much of this competition comes from companies
which are larger and have greater resources than PSB. PSB competes for deposits and other sources of
funds with other banks, savings associations, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, life insurance
companies, and other [inancial and non financial companies. Many of these nonbank competitors offer
products and services which are functionally equivalent to the products and services offered by PSB. New
bank and nonbank competitors continue to enter our markets on a regular basis.

Based on publicly available deposit market share information as of June 30, 2005, the following is a list of
the three largest FDIC insured banking competitors in cach of PSB’s primary markets and a comparison of
PSB’s deposit market share to these primary competitors.



Deposit $’s Market

(3000s) Share
Marathon County, Wisconsin
M&I Bank $ 447,040 21.1%
Peoples State Bank 323,377 15.2%
Associated Bank 191,745 9.0%
All other FDIC insured institutions 1,158,502 54.7%
Oneida County, Wisconsin
M&I Bank $ 177,289 28.0%
Associated Bank 126,095 19.9%
Citizens Bank 77,990 12.3%
Peoples State Bank 41,773 6.6%
All other FDIC insured institutions 210,642 33.2%
Vilas County, Wisconsin
First National Bank of Eagle River $ 120,463 31.4%
M&I Bank 100,266 26.1%
Headwaters State Bank 47,906 12.5%
Peoples State Bank 15,265 4.0%
All other FDIC insured institutions 99,987 26.0%

Recent changes in banking laws have had a significant cffect on the competitive environment in which PSB
operates and are likely to continue to increase competition for PSB. For example, current federal law
permits adequately capitalized and managed bank holding companies to engage in interstate banking on a
much broader scale than in the past. Tn addition, financial holding companies are permitted to conduct a
broad range of banking, insurance, and securities activitics. PSB belicves that the combined effects of
more interstate banking and the development of greater “one-stop” availability for banking, insurance, and
securities services will both increase the overall level of competition and attract competitors with which
PSB may not now compete for its customers.

In addition to competition, the business of PSB is and will continue to be affected by general economic
conditions, including the level of interest rates and the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve (sce
“Regulation and Supervision — Monetary Policy”). This competition may cause PSB to seck out
opportunities to provide additional financial services to replace or supplement traditional net interest
income.

Executive Officers

David K. Kopperud, 60 — President of PSB and Peoples State Bank since July 1999; previously Executive
Vice-President of the Peoples State Bank (1994-1999).

David A. Svacina, 59 — Secretary and Vice President of PSB since December 2003; Vice President of PSB
since March 2002; Executive Vice President of Peoples State Bank since April 2003; Vice President of
Pcoples State Bank (1995-2003).

Scotl M. Cattanach, 37 — Treasurer of PSB since March 2002; Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Peoples State Bank since April 2003; Chief Financial Officer of Peoples State Bank (2002-
2003); prior to March 2002, certified public accountant at regional public accounting firm.




Regulation and Supervision
Regulation

PSB is subject to regulation under both federal and state law. PSB Holdings, Inc. is a registered bank

holding company and is subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve pursuant to the

BHCA. Peoples State Bank is subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) and, as a Wisconsin chartered bank, by the Wisconsin Department of Financial
Institutions,

The Federal Reserve expects a bank holding company to be a source of strength for its subsidiary banks.

As such, PSB Holdings, Inc. may be required to take certain actions or commit certain resources to Peoples
State Bank when it might otherwise choose not to do so. Under federal and state banking laws, PSB is
subject to regulations which govern its capital adequacy, loans and loan policies (including the extension of
credit to affiliates), deposits, payment of dividends, establishment of branch offices, mergers and other
acquisitions, investments in or the conduct of other lines of business, management personnel, interlocking
directorates, and other aspects of its operations. Bank regulators having jurisdiction over PSB generally
have the authority to impose civil fines or penalties and to impose regulatory sanctions for noncompliance
with applicable banking regulations and policies. In particular, bank regulators have broad authority to take
corrective action if Pcoples State Bank fails to maintain required minimum capital. Information concerning
compliance with applicable capital requirements is set forth in Item 8, in Note 17 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Banking laws and regulations have undergone periodic revisions that have often had a direct or indirect
ctfect on PSB’s operations and its competitive environment. Such laws and regulations are often, if not
continuously, subject to review and possible revision. Among recent changes in the regulatory
environment in which PSB operates are the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, which eliminated many of
the barriers to affiliation among banks, insurance companies, and other securities or financial services
companies, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA PATRIOT Act”) which requires banks and other financial
services companies to implement additional policies and procedures designed to address, among other
things, money laundering, terrorist financing, identifying and reporting suspicious activities and currency
transactions, and currency crimes, and the recent “Check 217 legislation which involves the replacement of
paper check records with digital copies in order to speed processing. Depending on the scope and timing of
tuture regulatory changes, it is likely they will affect the competitive environment in which PSB operates or
increase costs of regulatory compliance and, accordingly, may have a material adverse effect on PSB’s
consolidated financial condition, liquidity, or results of opcrations.

Monetary Policy

The earnings and growth of PSB are affected by the monctary and fiscal policies of the federal government
and governmental agencies. The Federal Reserve has a direct and indirect influence on the costs of funds
uscd by PSB for lending and its actions have a substantial effect on interest rates, the general availability of
credit, and the economy as a whole. These policies therefore affect the growth of bank loans and deposits
and the rates charged for loans and paid for deposits. Federal Reserve policies, in particular, have had a
significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to do so in the
future. PSB is not able to anticipate the future impact of such policies and practices on its growth or
profitability.




Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in PSB Holdings, Inc. common stock involves a significant degree of risk. The following
paragraphs describe what we believe are the most significant risks of investing in PSB common stock. You
should also read carcfully the cautionary statement in Item 1 regarding the use of forward-looking
statements in this discussion.

PSB’s business and earnings could be adversely affected by changes in general business and economic
conditions, including increased credit risk and interest rate risk.

PSB’s business and earnings are sensitive to general business and cconomic conditions in the United States
and, in particular, central and northern Wisconsin where it has significant operations. Thesc conditions
include short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, monetary supply, fluctuations in both debt and
equity capilal markets, the strength of the U.S, and local economics, acts or threats of war or terrorism that
negatively alfect general business and ¢conomic conditions in the U.S., and consumer spending, borrowing,
and saving habits. For example, an economic downturn, increase in unemployment, or higher interest rates
could decreasc the demand for loans and other products and services and/or result in a deterioration in
credit quality and/or loan performance and collectability. Reduced loan demand or nonpayment of loans
would have an adverse effect on PSB’s financial condition and results of operations.

PSB earnings could be adversely affected by the fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government
and its agencies.

The policies of the Federal Reserve impact PSB significantly. The Federal Reserve regulates the supply of
money and credit in the United States. Its policics directly and indirectly influence the rate of intercst
eamed on loans and paid on borrowings and interest-bearing deposits and can also affect the value of
financial instruments PSB holds. Those policics determine to a significant extent PSB’s cost of lunds for
Iending and investing. Changes in those policics are beyond PSB’s control and are difficult to predict.
Changes in Fedcral Reserve policies may increase the risk that PSB’s customers may fail to repay their
loans, and reduce the demand for PSB’s products and services.

The banking and financial services industry is highly competitive and increases in competitive levels
could adversely affect PSB’s financial condition and results of operations.

PSB operates in a highly competitive environment in the products and services PSB offers and the markets
in which PSB serves. The competition among financial services providers to attract and retain customers is
ntense. Customer loyalty can be easily influenced by a competitor’s new products, especially offerings
that provide cost savings to the customer or greater interest rates on deposit products. Some of PSB’s
competitors may be better able to provide a wider range of products and services over a greater geographic
area. The banking and financial services industry is likely to become even more competitive as a result of
legislative, regulatory, and technological changes and the continued consolidation of the industry.
Technology has lowered barriers to entry and made it possible for non-banks to offer products and services
traditionally provided by banks, such as automatic funds transfer and automatic payment systems. Also,
investment banks and insurance companies are competing in more banking businesses such as syndicated
lending and consumer banking. Many of PSB’s non-bank compctitors are subject to fewcer regulatory
constraints and have lower cost structures, PSB expects the consolidation of the banking and financial
services industry (o result in larger, better-capitalized companies offering a wide array of financial services
and products. Increased competition could result in loss of customers or reductions in PSB’s net interest
margin and fee income.




Traditional geographic boundaries to commercial deposit collection and commercial loan origination
are eroding, increasing competition against PSB’s products.

Just as technology and the presence of a robust secondary market lowered net interest margins and
increased competition for residential mortgage loans, changes in technology and providers are increasing
competition and lowering net interest margins on commercial products. Recent Check 21 legislation has
allowed out of area competitors to place on-site deposit item readers (often referred to as “remote capture”
devices) at their customer’s place of business eliminating the need for a local depository institution.
Similarly, an emerging secondary market for commercial lending has increased out of area competition for
and decreased spreads on some commercial loans traditionally made by local banks. This increased
competition may continue to adversely affect PSB’s results of operations.

If PSB cannot attain comparable growth rates in loans and local deposits, it may have a material adverse
effect on PSB’s capital position and results of operations.

Local deposit growth has not been sufficient to fund continued asset growth in recent years. Out of area
wholesale funding in the form of brokered certificates of deposit and Federal Home Loan Bank advances
have been obtained to fund incremental asset growth. These wholesale funding sources are gencrally more
sensitive to overall market interest rate changes and could be more costly than local deposit funding.
Ongoing use of wholesale funds also reduccs the amount of outside funding available for emergency
liquidity on both a short-term and long-term basis, substantially increasing the cost to obtain cmergency
liquidity. II'certain capital levels are not maintained by PSB, access to the brokered certificate of deposit
market could be substantially reduced, increasing wholesale funding costs.

PSB may lose fee income and deposits if a significant portion of consumers decide not to use banks to
complete their financial transactions.

Technology and other changes are allowing partics to complete financial transactions that historically have
involved banks at one or both ends of the transaction. For example, consumers can now pay bills and
transter funds dircctly without banks. The process of eliminating banks as intermediaries, known as
disintermediation, could result in the loss of fee income, as well as the loss of customer deposits and
income generated from those deposits.

PSB’s funding costs may increase if consumers decide not to use banks as their primary source to invest
liquid or other personal assets.

While the banking industry has historically held a majority of available deposits, generational factors and
trends in using other non-banking providers for investment of funds may reduce the level of deposits
available to fund banking assets and increase the cost of funding. Demographic trends in the United States
point to a growing transfer of wealth to the next generation in the following decades that could accelerate
this transfer of wealth out of the banking system and into other non-banking providers. If this change
occurs, PSB’s funding costs could increase and adversely affect PSB’s results of operations.

PSB’s market share may decline if it does not provide new products and services that gain market
acceptance and regulatory approval,

PSB’s success depends, in part, on its ability to adapt its products and services to evolving industry
standards and to control expenses. There is increasing pressure on financial services companies to provide
products and services at lower prices. This can reduce PSB’s net interest margin and revenues from its fee-
based products and services. In addition, PSB’s success depends in part on its ability to generate



significant levels of new business in its existing markets and in identifying and penetrating markets. The
widespread adoption of new technologies, including Internct-based services, could require PSB to make
substantial expenditures to modify or adapt its existing products and services or render PSB’s cxisting
products obsolete. If PSB cannot successfully introduce new products and services, achieve market
acceptance of its products and services, develop and maintain loyal customers, and/or break into targeted
markets, its financial conditions, liquidity, and results of operations will be adversely affected.

Investment to promote future growth of customers and new product types may not yield returns planned
by management.

PSB has substantially increased investment in premiscs and equipment to a level approximately 36% of
stockholders’ equity in 2005 compared to approximately 19% of equity during 2001. Tn addition, certain
cconomies of scale are not yet realized, as the ratio of total assets per employee has remained similar
despitc substantial increases in total assets as certain depariments have increased to manage more
sophisticated PSB products and risk management systems. Tn addition, PSB relies on technology to process
virtuaily all of its customer’s transactions and continually evaluates and implements technology upgrades
and improvements. Results from operations will be negatively effected if these investments in premiscs,
technology, and staffing do not generate additional revenue to oftset increasing operating expenses.

Changes in laws and regulations could increase competition and PSB’s operating costs.

PSB and its subsidiary bank are heavily regulated at the federal and state levels. This regulation is
designed primarily to protect consumers, depositors, and the banking system as a whole, not stockholders
of PSB. Congress and state legislaturcs and federal and state regulatory agencies continually review
banking laws, regulations, and policies for possible changes. Changes to statutes, regulations, or regulatory
policies, including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations, or policies, could
adversely affect PSB in substantial and unpredictable ways including limiting the types of financial
services and products PSB may offcr, increasing the ability of non-banks to offer competing financial
services and products, and/or increasing PSB’s cost structures. Also, PSB’s failure to comply with laws,
regulations, or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies and damage to its reputation.

PSB has increased the size of historical commercial and industrial loan relationships, exposing PSB to
potentially larger credit losses on one relationship in the event of default.

PSB has acquired a number of commercial relationships lor which credit has been issued based primarily
on the customer’s cash flow and business collateral to a level greater than in past years. In the event of a
failure of one of these large commercial customers, PSB could incur substantial losscs from default of loan
principal. A significant loan loss from such a large commercial customer would result in a larger provision
for loan losses and reduce income.

The loss of key loan personnel may damage customer relationships and reduce PSB’s loan volume and
net earnings.

Many of the PSB’s largest customers have close relationships with their servicing account ofticer and may
have a loyalty to that officer beyond PSB’s product offerings. Loss of certain relationship officers may
cause current customers to stop using PSB’s products and pursue new products offered by their current
account officer through a different employer. PSB’s continued success depends to a significant extent upon
the continued ecmployment of its relationship officers. The loss of scrvices of any of PSB’s relationship
officers could cause PSB’s business to suffer.




Unexpected liabilities resulting from current or future claims or contingencies may have a material
adverse effect on PSB’s business, operating results, and financial condition.

PSB may be involved from time to time in a variety of litigation arising out of its business. PSB’s
insurance may not cover all claims that may be asserted against it, and any claims asserted against PSB,
regardless of merit or eventual outcome, may harm PSB’s reputation. In addition, PSB may not be able to
obtain appropriate types or levels ol insurance in the future, nor may PSB be able to obtain adequaitce
replacement policies with acceptable terms, if at all. Should the ultimate Jjudgments or settlements in any
actual or threatencd claims or litigation exceed PSB’s insurance coverage, they could have a material
adversc effect on PSB’s business, operating results, and financial condition.

Potential acquisition or other expansion of our market may have a different result than planned and
may have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition,

Difficulty in operating in a new market, or in integrating an acquired business may cause PSB not to realize
expected revenue increases, cost savings, increases in market presence, or other projected benefits, PSB
may not attract sufficient loan or deposit volume in a new market to offsct the increased costs. The
integration process of an acquired business or location could result in higher than expected deposit attrition
(run-off), loss of cusiomers and key employees, the disruption of PSB’s business or the business of the
acquired company, or otherwise adversely affect PSB’s ability to maintain existing relationships with
customers and employces or to enter into new business relationships. These factors could contribute to
PSB not achieving the anticipated benefits of the market expansion or acquisition within the desired time
frames, if at all.

PSB’s accounting policies and methods are the basis of how PSB reports its financial condition and
results of operations, and they may require management to make estimates about matters that are
inherently uncertain.

PSB’s accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how PSB records and reports its financial
condition and results of operations. PSB’s management must exercisc Judgment in selecting and applying
many of these accounting policies and methods in order to cnsure that they comply with generally accepted
accounting principles and reflect management’s judgment as to the most appropriate manner in which to
record and report PSB’s financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, management must
select the accounting policy or method to apply from two or more alicrnatives, any of which might be
reasonable under the circumstances yet might result in PSB’s reportin g materially different amounts than
would have been reported under a different alternative. Tnformation on PSB’s critical accounting policies
is contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in ltem 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Unexpected tax liability as a result of examinations and challenges by tax authorities may harm PSB’s
Jinancial condition and results of operations.

In the normal course of business, PSB and its subsidiary are subject to examinations and challenges from
federal and state tax authorities regarding the amount of taxcs due in connection with investments it has
made and the businesses in which it is engaged. Recently, fcderal and state taxing authorities have become
increasingly aggressive in challenging tax positions taken by financial institutions, These tax positions may
relatc to tax compliance, sales and use, franchise, gross receipts, payroll, property, and income tax issues,
including tax base, apportionment, and tax planning. The challenges made by tax authorities may result in
adjustments to the timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of income among tax
Jurisdictions. Sce, Ttem 8, Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 1f such challenges are




made and are not resolved in PSB’s {avor, they could have an adverse effect on PSB’s financial condition
and results of operations.

Investors may not be able to liguidate their PSB holdings when desired because there is no active public
trading market for PSB stock.

There is no active public established trading market for PSB stock. As a result, investors may not be able
to resell shares at the price or time they desire.

PSB cannot guarantee continued cash dividend payments or that it will be able to meet its obligations to
holders of its trust preferred securities.

PSB is a separate and distinct legal entity from Peoples State Bank. Tt receives substantially all of its
revenue from bank dividends. These dividends are the principal source of funds to pay dividends on PSB’s
common stock and interest on its junior subordinated debt. The payment of dividends by the bank is
subject to federal law restrictions as well as to the laws of Wisconsin. Although semi-annual cash
dividends have been paid on PSB common stock for many years, a decline in operating income or need to
relain earnings for regulatory capital or growth may cause PSB to lower or stop the existing cash dividend.

PSB’s articles of incorporation could make more difficult or discourage an acquisition of PSB.

PSB’s articles of incorporation require the approval of two-thirds of all shares outstanding in order 1o effect
a merger, share exchange, or other reorganization. This provision may discourage potential takeover
attempts, discourage bids for our common stock at a premium over market price, or otherwise adversely
affect the market price of our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. PROPERTIES.

PSB’s administrative offices are housed in the same building as the bank’s primary customer service
location at 1905 West Stewart Avenuc in Wausau, Wisconsin. PSB’s other Wisconsin branch locations, in
the order they were opened for business, include Rib Mountain, Marathon City, Wausau (Eastside), Eagle
River (in the Trig’s grocery store), Rhinelander, Minocqua, and Weston. The branch in the Trig grocery
store occupies leased space within the supermarket designed for community banking operations. The
other 7 locations are owned by PSB without encumbrance and are occupied solely by PSB and are suitable
for current operations.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS,

PSB is subject to claims and litigation in the ordinary course of business, but does not believe that any such
claim or litigation will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS,

None.




PARTII

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Market

There is no active established public trading market in PSB common stock. Bid and ask prices are quoted
on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “PSBQ.OB.” Transactions in PSB common stock are limited
and sporadic.

PSB maintains an informal, annual share repurchase program of up to 1% of outstanding shares per year.
During 2005, PSB purchased 17,200 shares at an average price of $31.18 per share. During 2004, PSB

purchased 18,001 shares at an average price of $34.91 per share.

Maximum number

Total number (or approximate
of shares (or dollar value) of
Total number units) purchased shares (or units)
of shares Average price as part of publicly that may yet be
(or units) paid per sharc announced plans purchased under the
purchased (or unit) OT programs plans or programs
Period (a) (b) (©) (d)
October 2005 - § - - -
November 2005 3,800 30.15 3,800 3,400
December 2005 3.400 30.50 3.400 —
Quarterly Totals 7,200 $30.32 N 7,200 e

Information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K related to equity compensation plans is set forth
under Item 12, Part 111, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Holders

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 958 holders of record of PSB common stock. Some of
PSB’s shares are held in “street” name brokerage accounts and the number of beneficial owners of such
shares is not known and thercfore not included in the foregoing number,

Dividends

PSB cxpects that its practice of paying semi-annual dividends on its common stock will continue, although
the payment of future dividends will continue to depend upon earnings, capital requirements, financial
condition, and other factors. The principal source of funds for the payment of dividends by PSB is
dividend income from its bank subsidiary. Payment of dividends by the bank is subject to various
limitations under banking laws and regulations. At December 31, 2005, the bank could have paid a
maximum of approximately $15.5 million in additional dividends to PSB without prior regulatory approval.
However, to remain “well capitalized” under regulatory Prompt Corrective Action Provisions (scc Note 17
to the Consolidated Financial Statements), dividends could not exceed approximately $7.6 million as ol
December 31, 2005. PSB has paid regular dividends since its inception in 1995.
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On December 16, 2003, PSB declared a 5% stock dividend paid January 29, 2004. All per share
information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Ttem & has been adjusted to reflect the impact of this stock dividend on a proforma basis.

Market Prices and Dividends

Price ranges of over-the-counter quotations and dividends declared per share on PSB common stock for the
periods indicated are:

2005 Prices 2004 Prices
uarter High Low Dividends High Low Dividends
Ist $32.15 $31.85 $ - $35.00 $33.30 $ -
2nd $31.85 $30.75 $0.310 $34.75 $34.10 $0.300
3rd $31.00 $30.65 $ - $34.50 $32.75 $ -
4th $30.90 $29.25 $0.310 $32.75 $32.10 $0.300

Prices detaijled for the common stock represent the bid prices reported on the OTC Bulletin Board. The
prices do not reflect retail mark-up, mark-down, or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual
transactions.

Sales and Distribution of Stock

PSB distributed 120 shares (valued at $32.10 per share) and 232 shares (valued at $33.62 per share) of its
common stock during 2005 and 2004, respectively, to its directors in licu of cash payments under the
director’s incentive compensation plan. Receipt of stock or deferral of value into the director deferred
compensation plan via a previously committed election was mandatory and no investment decision was
made by any member of the Board.

Ttem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Table 1: Earnings Summary and Selected Financial Data
Consolidated summary of earnings:

Years ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Total interest income $25,764 $22.202  $21,050  $21,915  $23,428
Total interest expensc 11,655 8,113 7,869 9,274 12,469
Net interest income 14,109 14,089 13,181 12,641 10,959
Provision for loan losses 160 855 835 1,110 890
Net interest income after loan loss provision 13,949 13,234 12,346 11,531 10,069
Total noninterest income 3,468 3,123 4,111 3,048 2,065
Total noninterest expenses 11,040 10,975 9.351 8.226 7.315
Net income before income taxes 6,377 5,382 7,106 6,353 4,819
Provision for income taxes 2.037 1,856 2,300 1,988 1,453
Net income _ . $ 4,340 $ 3526 % 4806  § 4365 % 3366
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Consolidated summary balance sheets:

As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,604 $ 23324 § 18,927 $ 21,552 $ 25,550
Securities 81,501 68,894 72,472 81,057 70,444
Total loans receivable, nct of allowance 372,411 343,923 304,339 256,015 236,574
Premises and equipment, net 12,632 12,432 7.557 6,158 4,755
Bank owned life insurance 4,805 - - -
Other assets 8,205 6,401 5,638 6,687 6,973
Total assets $506,158 $454,974 $408,933 $371,469  $344,296
Total deposits $400,536  $358,225 $316,414 $297,830 $273,635
FHLB advances 54,000 52,000 47,000 38,000 38,000
Other borrowings 4,497 8,565 10,475 3,302 4,327
Junior subordinated debentures 7,732 - — — -
Other liabilities 3,908 2,568 2,903 3,034 2,985
Stockholders’ equity 35,485 33.616 32,141 29,303 25,349
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $506,158 $454974 $408,933  $371.469 $344,296
Performance ratios: 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Basic earnings per share $ 253 % 204 § 276 $ 248 § 1.91
Diluted carnings per share $ 252 % 203 % 274 § 248 % 1.91
Common dividends declared per share $ 062 $ 0.60 § 0.57 § 054 % 0.51
Dividend payout ratio 24.42%  29.33%  2077%  21.65%  26.94%
Net book value per sharc at year-end $ 2081% 1955% 1854 % 1675 % 1438
Average common shares outstanding 1,714,648 1,725,136 1,740,106 1,758,249 1,763,381
Return on average stockholders’ equity 12.39% 10.66% 15.45% 15.97% 13.96%
Return on average asscts 0.90% 0.82% 1.26% 1.25% 1.05%
Net intercst margin (tax adjusted) 3.23% 3.60% 3.75% 3.95% 3.73%
Net loan charge-offs to average loans 0.04% 0.07% 0.16% 037% 0.14%
Noninterest income to average asscts 0.72% 0.73% 1.08% 0.88% 0.65%
Noninterest income to tax adjusted

net interest margin 23.61%  21.29%  2998%  23.12% 18.12%
Efficiency ratio (tax adjusted) 60.80%  61.70%  52.46%  50.68%  54.50%
Salaries and benefits expense to average assets 1.36% 1.44% 1.56% 1.42% 1.38%
Other expenses to average assets 0.91% 1.11% 0.89% 0.94% 0.91%
FTE employees at year-cnd 145 133 116 116 100
Average equity to average assets 7.23% 7.68% 8.15% 7.85% 7.53%
Non-performing loans to gross loans at year-end 0.74% 0.80% 1.08% 0.94% 1.68%
Allowance for loan losses to loans at year-end 1.11% 1.19% 1.15% 1.22% 1.24%
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Management’s discussion and analysis reviews significant factors with respect to PSB’s financial condition
and results of operations at and for the three-ycar period ended December 31, 2005. This discussion should
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, notes, tables, and the selected financial
data presented elsewhere in this report. All figures are in thousands, except per share data and per
employee data.

Management’s discussion and analysis, like other portions of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, includes
forward-looking statements that are provided to assist in the understanding of anticipated future financial
performance. However, such performance involves risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to
differ materially from those described in such forward-looking statements. A cautionary statement
regarding forward-looking statements is set forth under the caption “Forward-Looking Statements” in
Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion and analysis should be considered in light of
such cautionary statement and the risk factors disclosed in Item 1A of this report.

Executive Overview

This overview summarizes PSB’s business model and presents the primary opportunities and challenges
faced by management and the impact of cconomic and industry-wide factors on PSB’s operating
cnvironment. In addition, the near-term and long-term issucs on which management is most focused are
outlined in general terms as a backdrop for the detailed statistical and narrative analysis presented in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Although PSB opcrates as a community bank, its operating environment is
significantly impacted by national economic trends and other industry factors. These risk factors were
outlined in Item 1A previously.

PSB operates in many ways as a local community bank, but larger in size and scope. PSB maintains a
traditional retail and commercial banking business model and currently does not hold significant stand-
alone derivative instruments to hedge cash flow and fair value risks. The primary sources of income are net
interest earned on residential and commercial loans made to local customers after payment of interest to
depositors. PSB originates, sells, and services long-term fixed rate mortgage loans to the secondary market
for a substantial amount of fee income. Depositors pay various service fees including overdraft charges
and commercial service fees which contribute to PSB’s noninterest income. PSR sells retail investment
products on a commission basis primarily to individuals. Interest income on loans, mortgage banking
income, scrvice charges on deposit accounts, and investment sales commissions make up approximately
85% of PSB’s gross revenue, consistent with recent years.

PSB serves custorners through a network of cight full-service locations with an emphasis on customer
service and flexibility. PSB employees are substantial participants in community involvement for the
betterment of PSB’s market areas, customers, and potential customers.

PSB recognizes many opportunities for continued growth in products, customers, assets, and profits. PSB’s
relative size (compared to typical community banks, thrifts, and credit unions) allows it to offer a wide
array of financial service products in a one-stop shopping service model. Although greater in size than
typical community banks, traditional community bank customer service and flexibility differentiatc PSB
from larger financial service providers. Therefore, PSB can offer better service to customers
disenfranchised by large banks and large bank mergers while allowing them to continue their practice of
one-stop shopping and commercial support. PSB can compete against smaller local community banks and
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credit unions by continuing the same level of scrvice these customers expect, but giving them an expanded
and competitively priced product lineup due in part to economies of scale,

PSB has invested in key management and branch personnel to capitalize on relationships in existing and
adjacent markets. PSB’s growth into adjacent markets minimizes costs for name recognition and
awareness while increasing the speed in which customers are obtained via new locations and improving
convenience of service for existing customers. PSB intends to grow at a level greater than may be able to
be supported in existing adjacent markets. Therefore, future market expansions are likely to be out of the
area, and be direcicd by an officer who is a local market Icader in that area.

Against this back drop of industry-wide factors and competitive advantages and opportunities, management
monitors scveral areas of risk, negative trends, and challenges. The following items represent challenges
monitored by management in both the short- and long-term. These challenges are presented in greater
detail and statistical analysis throughout this section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

> Net income increased substantially during 2005 compared to 2004, due to 2004 incurring several
one-time charges and significantly reduced 2005 provisions for loan losses. However, 2005 net
income continued to be less than 2003 net income (the highest level for PSB to date) which was
driven significantly by mortgage banking income.

¥ The reduction in provision for loan losses in 2005 compared to prior years was due to an overall
reduction in problem loans, and favorable resolution of long-time problems for which specific loss
reserves had been applied. Such reduced provisions for loan losses relative to net growth in loans
receivable is not expected to continue during 2006 thereby reducing net income.

¥ Net interest margin continued a decline that began in 2003. Rising short-term interest rates (that
began with Federal Reserve discount rate increases during June 2004) have increased deposit costs
faster than corresponding longer-term lending rate income. Static gap analysis shows earning
assets repriced with similar timing to interest-bearing liabilities, but the extent of deposit repricing
has been greater than loans as the market’s interest yield curve flattened significantly during 2005.
Improvements in net interest margin are dependent in part on PSB’s ability to limit core deposit
funding rate increases while at the same time providing continucd loan growth supported by these
funds.

* PSB continues to expand its branch network, opening a branch in Weston, Wisconsin during 2005,
continuing significant increases to PSB’s fixed overhead expensc structure. In past years, low
overhead cxpenses allowed PSB to competitively price products whilc maintaining acceptable
profits [or capital expansion and stockholders. As overhead increascs, additional profit gains need
1o come from the salce of new services, acquisition of new customers, favorable loan and deposit
pricing, and other sources of income.

» Although the rate of retail deposit growth during 2005 improved over prior ycars, PSB continues
to rely on wholesale [unding such as broker certificates of deposit and Federal Home Loan Bank
of Chicago (“FHLB”) advances. In light of a long-term industry wide problem of attracting and
keeping deposits, PSB is positioning itself to meet future funding needs in this environment. PSB
has identitied noninterest bearing demand and commercial deposits as a long-term low cost source
of funding. Therefore, PSB has restructurcd its operations to cfficiently handle large volumes of
customer activity in this area through image processing and related initiatives. To increase deposit
levels, PSB has developed commercial treasury management products and other large-balance
high yield deposit accounts with key personnel Lo attract larger commereial and governmental
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depositors. To attract these deposits, above market intercst rates were required, but have resulted
in local deposits with significantly larger average balances.

> In connection with PSB’s new treasury management product initiative, lending activities with
large commercial enterprises to be repaid solely from cash flow have increased. While PSB secks
high quality borrowers and closcly monitors credit risk on such borrowers, the potential for large
loan principal charge-offs from a single commercial loan relationship increases. Additional staff
and other investments were added in 2005 in the credit analysis area Lo better monitor commercial
credit relationships.

¥ PSB has petitioned the United States Tax Court regarding an Internal Revenue Scrvice assessment
for tax related to disallowance of interest expense on holding tax-exempt obligations at its Nevada
investment subsidiary, PSB Investments, Inc. As described in Item 8, Note 13 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, an unfavorable outcome in this Tax Court petition would have
an unfavorable impact on profits.

» Tncome from service fees on deposit accounts continued a decline beginning in 2003. The change
has been led by a decline of $113 (or 27%) in business service charges since 2003. The business
service charges were reduced due to local competitive pressurcs and from an account fee
restructuring aimed at increasing the level of commercial local noninterest bearing demand
accounts.

Results of Operations

PSB’s net income increased to $4,340 for 2005 compared to $3,526 in 2004 after net income of $4,806
during 2003 representing an increasc ol 23.1% in 2005 and a decrease of 26.6% in 2004. Similarly, diluted
earnings per share increased to $2.52 for 2005 compared to $2.03 in 2004 and $2.74 in 2003. Item 6 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K presents other various financial performance ratios and measures for the five
years ending December 31, 2005. A number of separate factors impacted PSB carnings during the past
several years as outlined in the table below. Dcspite these separately identifiable items, PSB operating
income before the provision for loan losses and special items continues to decling from the level set in 2002
and has grown only modestly since 2001. The following table presents PSB’s net income for the five years
ending December 31, 2005 presented before the provision for loan losses (after-tax) and identifying
adjustments for gain on sale of mortgage loans and other nonrecurring income and expense items.
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Table 2: Summary Operating Income

Years ending December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Net income before provision for loan losses,

and special items, net of tax £3,792 $3.965  $4,114  $4297 $3,491
Less: Provision for loan losses, net of tax 97 518 506 673 539
Net income before special iters, net of tax $3,695 $3,447  $3,608 $3.624 $2,952
Mortgage banking income 533 546 1,071 741 414
Net gain on sale of securities 4 59 48 - -
Gain on sale of Pulse ATM stock 47
Recovery (write-off) of collection expenses 61 (77)
Loss on abandonment of home office (199)
Branch closure charges (100)
Wisconsin state income tax settlement (150)
Gain on curtailment of post-retirement benefit plan 79
Net income . $4,340 $3.526 $4.806  $4,365 $3,366

While 2005 net income beforc special non-recurring items and mortgage banking income increased o the
highest level in the past five years, nct income was substantially improved by a reduction in the provision
for loan losscs. The low provision levels seen in 2005 are not expected to continue during 2006, reducing
luture income. Net income before provision for loan losses and special items continues to decline primarily
[rom a decrease in average net interest margin in 2005 and 2004 compared to prior years as net interest
income growth was significantly less than operating expense growth.

2004 net income compared to 2003 net income was also reduced by one-time charges for loss on
abandonment of the previous home office and a grocery store branch location and settlement of a
Wisconsin state income tax issue related Lo the operations of the Nevada investment subsidiary in addition
to lower mortgage banking income.

Net income in 2003 before gain on sale of mortgage loans, gain on sale of securities, and gain on
curtailment of a post-retirement benefit plan decreased from the level seen during 2002. This decline in net
income and profit growth before these items was due primarily to a decrease in average net interest margin
on earning assets compared to 2002 and additional wages paid to employces based on carnings which
included mortgage banking income under PSB’s incentive compensation plan.

Net Interest Income

PSB incurs market risk primarily from interest-rate risk inherent in its lending and deposit taking activities,
Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. Management actively
monitors and manages its intercst-rate risk exposure. The measurement of the market risk associated with
financial instruments (such as loans and deposits) is meaningful only when all related and olfsetting on-
and off-balance sheet transactions are aggregated, and the resulting net positions are identified. Disclosurcs
about the fair value of financial instruments that reflect changes in market prices and rates can be found in
Item &, Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

PSB’s primary objective in managing interest-rate risk is to minimize the adverse impact of changes in
interest rates on net interest income and capital, while adjusting the assct-liability structure to obtain the
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maximum yield-cost spread on that structure. PSB relies primarily on its asset-liability structure to control
interest-rate risk. In general, longer-term earning assets are funded by shorter-term funding sources
allowing PSB to earn net interest income on both the credit risk taken on assets and the yield curve of
market interest rates. However, a sudden and substantial change in interest rates may adversely impact
carnings, to the extent that the interest rates borne by assets and liabilitics do not change at the same speed,
to the same extent, or on the same basis. PSB does not engage in trading activities to enhance earnings or
for hedging purposes.

Net interest income represents the difference between interest carned on loans, securities, and other
interest-earning assets, and the interest expense associated with the deposits and borrowings that fund them.
Interest rate fluctuations together with changes in volume and types of earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities combine to affect total net interest income. Additionally, net interest income is impacted by the
sensitivity of the balance sheet to change in interest rates, contractual maturities, and repricing frequencies.

The following tables present average balance sheet data and related average interest rates on a tax

equivalent basis and the impact of changes in the earnings assets base for the three years cnding
December 31, 2005.
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Table 3: Average Balances and Interest Rates

_ 2005 2004 2003
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yicld/
Balance  Interest Rate  Balance Interest  Rate  Balance Interest Rate
Assets
Interest-eaming assets:
Loans! X $368,626 $22,423 6.08% $329,133 $19,278 5.86% $282,006 $18,025 6.39%
Taxable sccurities 49,514 1,966 3.97% 47,356 1,798 3.80% 51,707 1,943 3.76%
Tax-cxempl securities'™ 24,574 1,482 6.03% 24,730 1,488 6.02% 22478 1,388 6.17%
FHLB stock 2,958 162 5.48% 2,709 159 5.87% 2,367 153 6.46%
_Other 8,666 311 3.59% 3,497 56 1.60% 6,760 74 1.09%
Total® 454,338 26,344 580% 407,425 22,779 5.59% 365318 21,583 5.91%
Non-intcrest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 13,102 13,409 10,268
Premises and cquipment,
net 12,643 10,508 6,410
Cash surrender value life ins. 4,186
Other assets 4,338 3,158 3,108
Allowance for loan losses (4.240) (3,885) (3.475)
Total $484,367 $430,615 __$381,629
Liabilities & stockholders’ equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings and demand deposits $ 69,894 $ 1,201 1.72% $ 52,982 $ 371 0.70% § 40,518 § 247 0.61%
Money market deposits 70,042 1,222 1.74% 66,494 610 0.92% 69,238 692 1.00%
Time deposits 188,335 6,596 3.50% 166,967 4,802 2.88% 144,083 4,712 3.27%
FHLB borrowings 52,208 2,133 4.09% 47,749 2,061 4.32% 38,553 1,989 5.16%
Other borrowings 8,739 272 3.11% 11,824 269 2.28% 9,151 229 2.50%
Junior sub, debentures 3.961 231 5.83% _
Total 393,179 11,655 2.96% 346,016 8,113 2.34% 301,543 7,869 2.61%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 53,285 49,600 46,876
Other liabilities 2,864 1,915 2,098
Stockholders’ equity 35,039 33.084 31112
__Total $484,367 $430.615 $381.629
Net interest income $14.689 — . %4666 $13,714
Rate spread 2.84% 3.25% 3.30%
Net vicld on interest-earning assets. 3.23% 3.60% 3.75%

) Nonaccrual loans are included in the daily average loan balances outstanding,
® The yield on tax-exempt loans and securities is computed on a tax-equivalent basis using a tax rate of 34%.
@ Loan fees are included in total intcrest income as follows: 2005 - $238, 2004 - $397, 2003 - $654.



Table 4: Interest Income and Expense Volume and Rate Analysis

2005 compared to 2004 2004 compared to 2003
increase (decrease) duc 1o m increase (decrease) due to "
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
Interest earned on:
Loans'” $2,401 $ 744  $3,145  $2,762  $(1,509)  $1,253
Taxable securities 86 82 168 (165) 20 (145)
Tax-exempt securities” ©)] 3 (6) 136 (36) 100
FHLB stock 14 (11) 3 20 (14) 6
Other interest income 186 69 255 (52) 34 (18)
Total 2,678 887 3,565 2,701 (1,505) 1,196
Interest paid on:
Savings and demand deposits 291 539 830 &7 37 124
Money market deposits 62 550 612 (25) (57) (82)
Time deposits 748 1,046 1,794 659 (569) 90
FHLB borrowings 182 (110) 72 397 (325) 72
Other borrowings (96) 99 3 61 2n 40
Junior subordinated debentures 231 — 231
Total 1,418 2,124 3.542 1179 (935) 244
Net interest earnings $1,260 $(1,237) . § 23 $1,522 § (570) $ 952

) The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to volume and rate changes in
proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in cach.

@ The yield on tax-exempt loans and investment securities has been adjusted to its fully taxable equivalent
using a 34% tax rate.

During 2005, average earning assets grew 11.5% to $454,338 compared to growth of 11.5% during 2004
and 9.5% during 2003. However, tax adjusted net interest income increased just .2% to $14,689 compared
1o growth of 6.9% 1o $14,666 during 2004 and growth of 4.0% to $13,714 during 2003. As market rates
increased during 2005, yield on earning assets increased .21% but cost of interest-bearing liabilities
increased .62%, lowering the interest rate spread .41% to 2.84% from 3.25% in 2004. Although the volume
of additional earning assets added $1,260 1o net interest income during 2005, approximately 98% of this
benefit was lost to declines in net interest margin.

Changes in 2005 net margin were impacted primarily by 1) the flattening shape of the yield curve, and

2) local competitive pressures on loan and deposit pricing. During 2005 continued discount rate increases
by the Federal Reserve of 200 basis points (short-term rate increases) were not matched by corresponding
yicld increases of approximately 100 basis points in longer term yields such as three-year fixed rate
maturities. This reduced the spread between short-term overnight funding expense and mid-term rate
income commonly in place for PSB loan originations. A flattening yield curve in 2005 would have been
expected to reduce net interest margin even if the mid-term asscts {unded with short-term liabilities would
have repriced in a manner consistent with overall market interest rates.

Exacerbating the flattening of net interest margin was the extent to which market rate increase were able to

be repriced by PSB during 2005. Of the 200 basis point increase in short-term market rates, PSB short-
term average deposit funding rates increased 91 basis points. Compared to the approximately 100 basis

19



point increase in market loan rates in the three year average term, PSB loan yields increased 22 basis
points. Thesc disproportionate rate increases resulted from competitive pressures to limit loan increases
and maximize deposit rale increases during 2005.

A substantial driver in 2005 PSB short-term deposit rate increases were sales of high yicld money market
and interest-bearing demand NOW deposits during 2005 to municipalities and individual high dollar
balance accounts, These high yield accounts are priced relative to the 30 day LIBOR and change with
movements of wholesale market rates, Due to this rate structure, short-term market rate increases on 36%
of the December 31, 2005 savings, interest-bearing demand, and money market deposits were fully realized
by the end 0f 2005. These products have resulted in attracting local funding of approximately $52,270 with
average account balances of approximatcly $261 as of December 31, 2005.

Yicld on both earning assets and cost of interest-bearing liabilities declined during 2004 and 2003.
However, during 2004 and 2003, the decline in earning assets yield was greater than the offsetting decline
in the cost of intcrest-bearing liabilities. As short-term interest rates increascd beginning in June 2004,
earnings assets and funding sources tied to these short-term rates rose compared to yields scen during 2003,
For example, in 2004 these included taxable securities, other overnight investments, and savings and
demand deposits. However, longer-lerm earning assets and long-term funding sources continued Lo mature
at lower rates during 2004, decreasing yields. Although the volume of additional earning assets added
$1,522 to net inicrest income during 2004, approximately 37% of this benefit was lost to declines in net
interest margin.

During 2003, the decline in earning asset yiclds was greater than the offsetting decline in the cost of
interest-bearing liabilities as savings and other “core” customer deposits had alrcady repriced to near their
floor during 2002. Conversely, longer-term loans matured and refinanced at continually lower rates,
decreasing net interest margin during 2003. Although the volume of additional carning assels added $1,715
to net intcrest income during 2003, nearly 70% of this benefit was lost to declines in net intcrest margin,
The following table outlines the change in yields during the threc years ended December 31, 2005.

Table 5: Yield on Earning Assets

Year ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Yield Change _ Yield Change  Yield Change
Yield on earning assets 5.80% 0.21%  5.59% -0.32%  5.91% -0.82%
Eflective rate on all liabilitics as
a percent of earning assets 2.57% 0.58% 1.99% -0.17%  2.16% -0.62%
Net yield on earning assels 3.23% -0.37% _ 3.60% -0.15%  3.75% -0.20%
Norninterest income

As shown in Table 7, during 2005, PSB nonintcrest income increased $345 primarily from a $160 increasc
in cash surrender valuc of life insurance contracts purchased during carly 2005, a gain on sale of Pulse
A'TM stock of $78, and an increase in retail investment sales commissions of $183. Absent thesc items,
noninterest income declined $76 primarily from $46 lower scrvice fee income. Other operating income
increased $99 led by an increase of $34 in merchant banking income. Management believes other fee
based income o be an important component of future earnings as the net interest margin on traditional loan
and deposit products declines due to increased financial services competition.
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During 2004, PSB noninterest income from deposit service fees, sale of mortgage loans, and other income
declined relative to net interest income as mortgage banking income declined, reversing a trend seen in
2003 and 2002 which had large increases in mortgage banking income. Mortgage banking income on sale
ol mortgages to secondary market investors was the primary reason for net income growth during 2003 and
2002, and was a factor in the decline in net income during 2005 and 2004 compared to these periods. The
following common size income statements present the changing mix of income and expense relative to
traditional loan and deposit product net interest income (before tax adjustment) for the five ycars ending
December 31, 2005.

Table 6: Summary of Earnings as a Percent of Net Interest Income

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Net interest income 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Provision for loan losses 1.1% 6.1% 6.3% 8.8% 8.1%
Net interest income after loan loss provision 98.9% 93.9% 93.7% 91.2% 91.9%
Total noninterest income 24.6% 22.2% 31.2% 24.1% 18.8%
Total noninterest expenses 78.2% 77.9% 70.9% 65.1% 66.7%
Net income before income taxes 45.3% 38.2% 54.0% 50.2% 44.0%
Provision for income taxcs 14.4% 13.2% 17.4% 15.7% 13.3%
Net income - 30.9% 25.0% 36.6% 34.5% 30.7%

2005 service [ee income declined $46 duc primarily to a decline in commercial deposit service fee income
of $65, or 17.7%. During 2005, commercial service fees were reduced on certain accounts to provide more
competitive products as part of a strategic plan to increase the level of commercial demand deposits.
During 2005 average commercial demand deposits did increase $2,131, or 6.4% after experiencing just
1.6% growth during 2004. PSB had expected to increase serviee fee income during 2005 from fees on new
treasury management products. However, customer treasury management fces have not yet substantially
increased income.

During 2004, service fees declined $48 from that in 2003 due again to a decline in commercial account
service charges of $48, or 11.6%. Mortgage banking declined $866, or 49.0% during 2004 compared to
2003 as mortgage refinancing activity ceased as falling long-term mortgage rates stabilized. Separate from
these items, 2004 noninterest income declined $74 due to a one-time gain on curtailment of a post-
retirement benefit plan of $131 during 2003,

During 2003, the impact of the gain on sale of mortgages and some nonrecurring income items were
significant contributors to the increase in 2003 net income over 2002, Although the continued decline in
market interest rates decreased average net interest margin as described previously, low mortgage rates
encouraged homeowners to refinance their mortgages generating significant fee income for PSB, offselting
lost interest margin on loans retained on PSB’s balance sheet. However, because this activity was in
response to falling interest rates, management did not expect such level of mortgage fee income Lo continue
after 2003. A detailed analysis of noninterest income relative 1o net income before income taxes follows to
highlight the impact of these items on income,
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Table 7: Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31,

2005

2004

2003

% of pre-tax

% of pre-tax

% of pre-tax

Amount  income Amount income Amount _ income

Service fees $1,188 18.63% $1,234  2293%  $1,282 18.04%
Mortgage banking income 880 13.80% 901 16.74% 1,767 24.87%
Retail investment sales commissions 610 9.57% 427 7.93% 351 4.94%
Increase in cash surrender value of

life insurance 160 2.51% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Insurance annuity sales commissions 38 0.60% 41 0.76% 63 0.89%
Net gain on sale of securities 6 0.09% 97 1.80% 80 1.13%
Net gain (loss) on sale of foreclosed

property (1) -0.02% 29 0.54% (9 -0.13%
Gain on disposal of premises and

equipment 2 0.03% 3 0.06% - 0.00%
Gain on sale of non-mortgage loans 17 0.27% - 0.00% 62 0.87%
(ain on sale of Pulse ATM stock 78 1.22% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Gain on curtailment of post-retirement

benefit plan - 0.00% - 0.00% 131 1.84%
Other opcrating income 490 7.68% 391 7.26% 384 5.40%
Total noninterest income $3.468 54.38% $3,123  58.03%  $4,111 37.85%

PSB serviced $169,708 and $160,225 of residential real estate loans which have been sold to the FHLB
under the Mortgage Partnership Finance Program (“MPE”) at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
A servicing fee equal to .25% of outstanding principal is retained from payments collected from the
customer as compensation for servicing the loan for the FHLB. As a FHLB MPF loan servicer, PSB is also
paid a “credit enhancement” fee of .07% to .10% of outstanding serviced principal in addition to the .25%

collected for servicing the loan for the FHLB. See “Off Balance Sheet Arrangements.”

PSB recognizes a mortgage servicing right asset due to the substantial volume of loans serviced for the
FHLB. Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of PSB’s
mortgage servicing right accounting policies. The table below summarizes the components of PSB’s
mortgage banking income for the threc years ending December 31, 2005.
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Table 8: Morigage Banking Income

Years ending December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Cash gain on salc of mortgage loans $ 312 $ 363 $1,229
Originated mortgage servicing rights 269 334 792
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 581 697 2,021
Mortgage servicing fee income 415 396 325
FHLB credit enhancement fee income 112 117 96
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights (235) (293) (700)
Change in servicing right valuation allowance 7 (16) 25
Loan servicing fee income, net 299 204 (254)
Mortgage banking income § 880 $ 901 $1,767
Table 9: FHLB Mortgage Partnership Financing (MPF) Program Servicing
PSB Credit FHLB Mortgage

Principal  Enhancement Funded First Servicing
As of December 31, 2005 Serviced Guarantee Loss Account Right, net
MPF 100 Program (agent program) $100,186 § 499 $2,494 $455
MPF125 Program (closed loan program) 69.522 633 805 425
Total FHLB MPF serviced loans 3169708 $1,132 $3.299 £880

FHLB MPF Program elements as a percentage of principal serviced:

As of December 31, 2005: MPIF 100 MPF 125
PSB credit enhancement guarantee 0.50% 0.91%
FHLB funded first loss account 2.49% 1.16%
Mortgage servicing right, net 0.45% 0.61%
Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expenses year over year continue to increase growing .6% during 2005, 17.4% during 2004,
and 13.7% during 2003. However, 2004 included a special charge for loss on abandonment of premises
and cquipment related to the razing of the former home office building and closure of a grocery store
branch in Rhinelander following establishment of a separate stand alone branch near the same location.
Excluding this loss on abandonment, 2005 noninterest expense increased 4.2% over 2004, and 2004

noninterest expense increased 13.3% over 2003.

The 2005 efficiency ratio improved to 60.80% compared to 2004 ratio of 61.70%. In 2004, noninterest
expense grew faster than income, thereby unfavorably increasing the efficiency ratio compared to the 2003

efficiency ratio of 52.46%. However, the 2004 efficiency ratio before the non-recurring loss on

abandonment of premises and equipment was 59.56% compared to 60.80% in 2005, and 52.46% during
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2003. Other factors resulting in the less favorable efficiency ratio during 2005 and 2004 compared to 2003
were the large decline in mortgage banking income and slower net interest income growth relative to
growth in operating expenses. As PSB invests in new branch facilities and personnel (as occurred during
2005 and 2004), future years will have a significantly higher fixed cost structure than in prior years.

During 2003 and 2002, increascs in noninterest expenses were offset by increases in net interest income
and other income of similar amounts so that PSB’s efficiency ratio was 50.68% in 2002 and 52.46% in
2003. Salaries and employce benefits showed the greatest increase relative to net interest income and other

income during 2003,

The table below outlines in detail noninterest expenses for the three years ending Deccmber 31, 2005.

Table 10: Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
% of net % of net % of net
margin margin margin
& other & other & other
Amount _income™ _Amount _income™ Amount _income'™
Wages, cxcept incentive compensation $ 5,577 30.72% $ 5,059 28.44% $4.476 25.11%
Incentive compensation 135 0.74% 157 0.88% 466 2.61%
Deferred loan origination costs (659) -3.63% (306) -1.72% (259) -1.45%
Health insurance 516 2.84% 389 2.19% 377 2.12%
Profit sharing and retirement plan expense 315 1.73% 313 1.76% 327 1.83%
Deferred compensation plan expense 127 0.70% 18 0.10% 8 0.04%
Post-retircment health care benefits plan 8 0.04% 26 0.15% 62 0.35%
Payroil taxes and other emplovee benefits 591 3.25% 533 3.00% 495 2.78%
Total salaries and employee benefits 6,610 36.39% 6,189 34.80% 5,952 33.39%
Occupancy expense 1,767 9.73% 1,609 9.04% 1,127 6.32%
Loss on abandonment of premises and
equipment - 0.00% 379 2.13% - 0.00%
Data processing and other office operations 741 4.08% 655 3.68% 547 3.07%
Adverlising and promotion 287 1.58% 263 1.48% 172 0.96%
Directors fees and benefits 225 1.24% 254 1.43% 270 1.51%
Legal and professional expenses 230 1.27% 316 1.78% 290 1.63%
Write-off (recovery) of collection expenses (1 01) -0.56% 127 0.71% - 0.00%
Other expenses 1,281 7.07% 1,183 6.65% 993 5.58%
Total noninterest expense $11,040 60.80% $10,975 61.70% §9,351 52.46%

D Net interest income (net margin) is calculated on a tax equivalent basis using a tax rate of 34%.

The average number of full time equivalent employces (“FTE”) was 138, 126, and 119 in 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively. Average base wages per FTE were approximately $40,400, $40,100, and $37,600 in
2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, increasing .7% during 2005 and 6.6% during 2004,

During 2005, health insurance expense increased $127 or 32.6% from both higher individual stop loss
limits under the self-insured plan and greater plan claims. Deferred loan origination costs increased
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substantially as PSB adopted a new automated method to account for net loan origination fees and costs in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 91. Although greaier net costs were
deferred, amortization of these costs also accelerated, resulting in an increase in net deferred loan costs of
$66 during 2005 compared to $52 during 2004.

As a method to retain key employecs with PSB, a deferred compensation program was initiated during
2005. PSB deferred compensation plan contributions increased $109 to $127 during 2005 under the new
plan provisions. See Item 8, Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2005 and 2004, PSB invested in new branch facilities in Minocqua, Wausau (home office), and
Weston, Wisconsin in addition to technology investments in image capture and transport, and a new on-line
retail and commercial on-lin¢ banking product. These investments continuc to increase ongoing occupancy
and data processing costs. Qccupancy costs increased 9.8% and 42.8% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Data processing and other office operations costs increased 13.1% and 19.7% in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. During 2005, PSB introduced a new internet based home banking and commercial treasury
management system which contributed to increased data processing costs. Past and future technology
investments are cxpecled to continue to increase data processing costs during 2006.

During 2004, separatc from the increase in base pay, salaries and employee expense declined $346
compared to 2003 due primarily to lower incentive compensation and profit sharing expenses of $323.
PSB offers employees an incentive compensation program based on achievement of the bank’s nel income
requirements and achievement of department and individual goals. In addition, PSB’s profit sharing
contribution to the qualified employee retirement plan is a percentage of net income before income taxes.
During 2003 and 2002, the highest levels of incentive compensation were paid. However, incentive
compensation is variable, and declined during 2004 and was stable in 2005 due to a lower level of
profitability compared to expectations. Should final net income meet budgeted expectations for 2006,
incentive compensation expense is expected to increase compared to 2005 and 2004,

During 2004, occupancy expenses increased $482, or 42.8% due to $254 in additional premises and
gquipment depreciation expense, one-time charges for moving into the new home office of $23, and
settlement, in the amount of $52, of a sales tax audit related largely to premises and equipment investment
and maintenance, All other increases to occupancy expense totaled $153, an increase of 13.6%. PSB
occupied a new home office and principal customer financial center on June 28, 2004, placing into service
the 32,000 square foot $4.8 million dollar facility (including furniture and equipment). Abandonment of
the old main office (the building was razed) located on the same property generated a cumulative one-time
charge to opcrations of $329 ($199 after tax benefits). During December 2004, PSB closed its grocery
store branch located in Rhinelander, Wisconsin. In accordance with the lease agreement, PSB accrued $50
for costs Lo remove leasehold improvements in accordance with the lease agreement as a loss on
abandonment of premises and equipment. Following the decision to close the Rhinelander grocery store
branch, depreciation of remaining leasehold improvements was accelerated to the date of closing, adding
approximately $115 of additional depreciation expense during 2004 that had originally been allocated to
future years.

Other noninterest expenscs during 2004 include $127 of collection fees written off in response to regulatory
requirements to account for collection fees as expense until collected, despite PSB’s expectation that these
fees will be collected from the borrower in the future as part of the loan agreement or from SBA. loan
guarantec reimbursements. PSB now accounts for collection expenses when paid, and credits future
reimbursements of such expenses when received. During 2005, a past collection fee expense of $101 was
recovered, which reduced noninterest expenses.
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Advertising and promotion expenses declined during 2003 as PSB took much of its advertising and design
work in-house. In addition, PSB updated the bank logo and other media for a change in brand during 2002,
which increased nonrecurring expenses during that year. With the opening of two new branch locations
and a new administrative home office during 2004, advertising and promotion increased to capitalize on
these new initiatives and market cxposure.

Directors’ fees and benefits increased during 2003 due to an increase in fces effective January 1, 2003.
Increases to the director fees schedule are infrequent and the 2003 increase was the first in several years.

PSB formed Peoples Tnsurance Services LLC (the “Agency”) during Scptember 2003 as a start up
commercial property and casualty insurance agency that operated as a division of Pcoples Statc Bank.
Following two years of operation, the book of insurance business was sold to an unrelated insurance agency
in exchange for future servicing of existing customers following ongoing losses in excess of expectations.
The Agency incurred net losses (after tax benefits) from operations (excluding inter-company. cost
allocations for rent, management fees, and intercst expense) was $66, $129, and $39 during 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is assessed based upon credit quality, existing economic
conditions, and loss exposure by loan category. Management determines the allowance for loan losses
based on past loan expericnce, current economic conditions, composition of the loan portfolio, and the
potential for future loss. Accordingly, the amount charged to expense is based on management’s evaluation
of the loan portfolio. It is PSB’s policy that when available information confirms that specific loans, or
portions thereof, including impaired loans, are uncollectible, these amounts are promptly charged off
against the allowance. The provision for loan losses was $160 in 2005 compared to $855 in 2004 and $835
in 2003.

A reduction in the provision for loan losses during 2005 compared to prior years was a significant
contributor to increased 2005 net income. The reduction in provision was due to an improvement in credit
quality, a decline in the pacc of net loan growth, and favorable resolution of a significant long-term
problem loan for which specific reserves had been provided in previous years.

Non-performing loans relative to total loans and total assets continued to decline during 2005 compared to
2004 and 2003. See additional discussion under this Item 7 in the section titled “Allowance for Loan
Losses.” 1n addition, nearly 65% of the $28,511 net increasc in gross loans receivable during 2005 was
categorized internally as having above average commercial credit quality, or as retail non-problem
residential mortgages. A majority of these high credit loans originated as part of PSB’s commercial and
lreasury management strategic growth initiative and were made to large local companies with strong
operating cash flow and/or having strong guarantors.

Gross loans increased $40,205 during 2004 and $48,702 during 2003 compared to $28,511 in 2005,
requiring grealer reserve provisions to accommodate larger new loan growth during 2004 and 2003.

During 2005, PSB also received repayment of a long-time problem loan for which $160 in specific loss
reserves had previously been allocated. This specific reserve was taken back into income upon loan payoff
without loss of principal. PSB does not expect all these favorable conditions to recur next year and
anticipates increased provision for loan losses during 2006.
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Income Taxes

The cffective tax rate was 31.9% in 2005, 34.5% in 2004, and 32.4% in 2003. The increase in the 2004
effective rate was due to a Wisconsin state income tax settlement totaling $150 (afler federal tax benefits)
regarding operations of the Nevada investment subsidiary. Excluding this one-time charge, the effective
rate would have been 31.7%. During 2005, tax-cxempt income from bank owned life insurance and tax
exempt municipal income kept the 2005 effective rate near 2004 levels. During 2004, PSB earned a greater
portion of tax-exempt income on municipal securities relative to total income compared to prior years,
reducing the effective tax rate. See Item 8, Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional tax information.

| As described in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, PSB’s open tax returns are
under audit by the Internal Revenue Service in connection with PSB Investments, Inc. activities. PSB has
petitioned the United States Tax Court to review the case. Initial court proceedings are expected to occur
during 2006, PSB believes it has calculated and paid appropriate income taxcs in all cases in accordance
with written tax code and regulations. Through November 15, 2005, PSB has been assessed approximately
$184 in taxes, interest, and penalties for the tax years ending 1999 through 2002 as a result of the TRS audit,

Balance Sheet Changes and Analysis

Summary balance sheets for the five years ended December 31, 2005 are presented in Item 6 to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Total asset growth was 11.2%, 11.3%, and 10.1% during the years ended December
31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Presented in the table below is a summary balance sheet for the

five years ended as of Deecember 31, 2005 as a percentage of total assets.

Table 11: Summary Balance Sheet as a Percent of Total Assets

As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Cash and cash equivalents 5.3% 5.1% 4.6% 5.8% 7.4%
Securities 16.1% 15.1% 17.7% 21.8% 20.5%
Total loans receivable, net of allowance 73.6% 75.6% 74.4% 68.9% 68.7%
Premises and equipment, net 2.5% 2.7% 1.9% 1.7% 1.4%
Bank owned lifc insurance 0.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other assets 1.6% 1.5% 1.4% 1.8% 2.0%
Total assets . _ 2100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%
Total deposits 79.1% 78.7% 77.4% 80.2% 79.5%
FHLB advances 10.7% 11.4% 11.5% 10.2% 11.0%
Other borrowings 0.9% 1.9% 2.6% 0.9% 1.3%
Junior subordinated debentures 1.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other habilitics 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 0.8% 0.8%
Stockholders’ equity 7.0% 7.4% 7.9% 7.9% 7.4%
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 100.0%  100.0% _ 100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

Commercial, industrial, and commercial real estate loan principal increased during 2005, although the
majority of the increase occurred during the first six months of 2005, Total commercial purpose loans
(including closed-end and disbursed construction commercial real estate loans) increased $24,676 during
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2005, or 48% of total asset growth. Growth in securities and the investment in bank owned life insurance
was $17,412 or 34% of total asset growth. Demand deposits, savings, and jumbo brokcred certificates
increased $42,872 and funded 84% of total asset growth during 2005.

Equity capital as a percentage of total assets declined during 2005 to the lowest level of the past five years
as asset growth outpaced retained income growth. However, regulatory capital levels increased
substantially during 2005 via issuance of trust preferred sccurities categorized as junior subordinated
debentures on the balance sheet.

During 2004 and 2003, the asset mix increased in Joans receivable but decreased in securities held.
Investment in premises and equipment also increased with a new home office and a full service branch
facility added during 2004.

At December 31, 2004, deposits increased slightly as a funding source of assets after declining during 2003
when PSB increased reliance on FHLB advances and other borrowings (primarily repurchase agreements)
to fund asset growth. However, deposits include a greater amount of wholesale market broker certificates
of deposit at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 than in prior years. The table below presents changes in
the mix of average earning assets and interest bearing liabilities for the threc years ending December 31,
2005,

Table 12: Mix of Average Interest Earning Assets and Average Interest Bearing Liabilities

Year ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Loans 81.1% 80.8% 77.2%
Taxable securities 10.9% 11.6% 14.2%
Tax-exempt securities 5.4% 6.1% 6.2%
FHLB stock 0.7% 0.7% 0.6%
Other 1.9% 0.8% 1.8%
Total intercst earning assets 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Savings and demand deposits 17.8% 15.3% 13.4%
Money market deposits 17.8% 19.2% 23.0%
Time deposits 47.9% 48.3% 47.8%
FHLB advances 13.3% 13.8% 12.8%
Other borrowings 2.2% 3.4% 3.0%
Junior subordinated debentures 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total interest bearing liabilities 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The structure of PSB’s average earning asscts changed little during 2005 with a slightly greater emphasis
on loans and reduction in securitics. However, PSB’s average funding structure became more weighted
toward savings and demand dcposits, specifically local government and municipality high yield NOW
accounts with a reduction in moncy market deposits and other borrowings.

During 2004 and 2003, the growth in loans as a percentage of the earning assets mix was funded in part by

a change in the mix of sccurities and reduction in overnight federal funds sold (other carning assets).
During the past several years, a greater portion of intercst bearing liabilities have been from savings and
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demand deposits while money market balances have declined as market rates for the product fell prior to
2005.

Investment Securities Portfolio

The investment securities portfolio is intended to provide PSB with adequate liquidity, flexible
agset/liability management, and a source of stable income. At December 31, 2005, all securities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Unrealized gains and losscs are excluded from
earnings, but are reported as other comprehensive income in a separate component of stockholders’ equity,
net of income tax. The investment portfolio represented 16.3%, 17.7%, and 20.4% of average earning
assets in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The following table presents the fair value and amortized cost
of securities held by PSB at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Table 13: Investment Securities Distribution
As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003

Fair % of Fair % of Fair % of
Value  Portfolio Value Portfolio  Value Portfolio

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations

of U.S. government agencies $23,235 28.51% $ 7,771 11.28% $12,148 16.76%
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 26,170 32.11% 24,883 36.12% 24,664 34.03%
Mortgage backed sccuritics 6,784 8.32% 6,141 8.91% 7,979 11.01%
Collateralized mortgage obligations 23,014 2824% 27,801  40.35% 25,383 35.03%
Trust preferred sceuritics 2,250 2.76% 2,250 3.27% 2,250 3.10%
Other equity securities 48 0.06% 48 0.07% 48  0.07%
Total N $81,501  100.00% $68.894 100.00% $72,472 100.00%

During 2005, short-term market interest rates rosc greater than longer-term rates, with market expectations
of continued short-term rate increases during 2006. In light of this rising rate environment, PSB generally
purchased securities with final maturities less than five years, and allocated fewer new purchases to
securities with extension risk such as mortgage backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations
(“CMQs7). The U, 8. government agency allocation grew substantially through purchase of sceurities with
final maturities generally less than 5 years containing either one-time or recurring issucr call options. Due
to a flattening yield curve, mid-term agency securities with issuer call options offered rising yields in
cxcess of those available with longer-term bullet maturity structures. At December 31, 2005,
approximately 43% of the U. S. agency portfolio consisted of securities without issuer call options or
securities with a final call option within one year where the likelihood of the issuer call is considered
remote.

During 2003, taxable security yields increased .17% to 3.97% as short term and intermediate term interest
rates increased. However, longer term market rates continue to be stable and the long-term tax-exempt
securities portfolio yield was stable at 6.03% tax adjusted. Because PSB maintains an investment “ladder”
of maturities in its municipal portfolio, current maturities continue to be reinvested at lower rates, gradually
reducing the tax adjusted yield on municipal sccuritics. The municipal security yield is expected to
continue to decline slightly during 2006 even as current market interest rates increase.

During 2004, PSB continued investment in tax-exempt securities due to steepness in the yield curve and
greater tax effected returns available. Also due to the steepness of the market interest rate yield curve
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during 2003, PSB reinvested some of the CMO security prepayment proceeds in additional long-term
municipal securities to gain higher tax advantaged yields.

During 2004, a number of U.S. government agency securities were called (without re-investment) or sold to
fund loan growth, as part of a pro-active asset-liability management stratcgy. Against a market expectation
of higher security yields in 2005, some lower yielding securitics were sold and re-invested in higher coupon
loans receivable. See ltem 8, Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for additional
information on security sales.

As market interest rates continued to fall during 2003, a large percentage of PSB’s CMOs prepaid and PSB
received large cash flows to be reinvested. These significant prepayments also required purchase premiums
to be amortized against income much more quickly than anticipated when the CMO was purchased which
contributed to declining yields. The yield on taxable securities, including CMOs, was 3.76% during 2003
compared 1o 5.27% during 2002.

During 2003, at the time CMO prepayments were accelerating, reinvestment rates for similar securitics
were at historic lows. As part of proactive asset-liability management, PSB chose to reinvest these CMO
cash flows in 15 ycar fixed rate residential mortgages held on PSB’s balance sheet. The program absorbed
approximately $6 million of securitics cash flow during 2003, Refer to the discussion of changes in loans
for additional information on this temporary program.

During 2003, PSB cxpanded securities ownership into additional categorics not previously held. Tn light of
PSB’s asset/liability position and expectation of intcrest rate movements, pass through mortgage backed
securitics of 15 year single family mortgage pools were purchased as noted in the table above. In addition,
PSB purchased nonrated trust preferred securitics issued by bank holding companies in Wisconsin. As
with nonrated municipal securities, PSB considers ownership of such local issues to have no more risk than
out of state rated issues due to PSB’s understanding of local markets, municipalities, and issuers. Fach
security purchased by PSB is subject to a full and formal risk analysis considering (among other (actors)
the liquidity needs of the bank and the credit risk of the issuer. Although the original maturity on each trust
preferred sceurity was 30 years, the interest rates on each security currently adjust, or will adjust after an
initial fixed rate period based on the 90 day LIBOR raic, reducing PSB’s intercst rate risk on these longer
maturity assets.

The following table categorizes securities by scheduled maturity date and does not take into account the
existence of optional calls held by the securily issuer. Therefore, actual funds flow from maturing
sceurities may be different than presented below. Maturity of mortgage backed securitics and collateralized
mortgage obligations, some of which call for scheduled monthly payments of principal and interest, are
categorizcd by average principal life of the security. Yields by securily type and maturity are based on
amortized securily cost.
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Table 14: Investment Securities Maturities and Rates

Afier one but Afler five but
Within one year  within five years  within ten years  Afier ten years

As of December 31, 2005 Amount  Yield  Amount Yicld Amount Yield Amount Yicld
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. government agencies $4,220  3.90% $19.015 4.17%
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions!” $1,804 6.77% $10,839 6.47%  $13,527 5.39%
Mortgage backed sccuritics 6,126 4.46% 658 4.82%
Collateralized mortgage obligations 2,054 3.48% 20,960 3.88%
Non-rated trust preferred sccurities 2,250 7.22%
Othcer cquity sceurities 48 29.47%
Totals $8,126  4,55%  $56,940 4,53%  $14,185 536%  $2250 7.22%

1 weighted average yields on tax-exempt securities have been calculated on a tax-cquivalent basis using a ratc of 34%.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, PSB’s securities portfolio did not contain securities of any single issuer
where the aggregate carrying value of such securities exceeded 10% of stockholders’ equity.

Securities with an approximate carrying value (fair value) of $22,950, $27,982, and $17,994 at December
31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, were pledged primarily to secure public deposits, other borrowings,
and for other purposes required by law. The substantial increase in securities pledged from 2003 to 2004
was due to the increase in local governmental and municipal funds in excess of insured limits obtained by
PSB during 2004,

The market value of the investment portfolio as a percentage of book value has been impacted by perceived
and actual increases in short- to mid-term interest rates during the past two years. Increases in current
market rates decrease the market value of a portfolio of fixed rate securities held. At December 31, 2005,
market value was 99.0% of book value compared to 100.8% of book value at December 31, 2004 and
101.8% of book value at December 31, 2003. The nel unrecalized loss on securities available for sale,
recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, was $542, nct of delerred taxes of $312 at
December 31, 2005 compared to an unrealized gain of $384 net of deferred income taxes of $195 at
December 31, 2004. Unrealized securities gains and losses, net of income tax eflects, do not impact the
level of regulatory capital under current banking regulations. Management belicves investment security
yields have a stabilizing effect on net interest margin during periods of interest rate swings and expects to
hold existing securities until maturity or repayment unless such funds are needed for liquidity due to
unexpected loan growth or depositor withdrawals or if the sale is beneficial to PSB’s interest rate risk and
return profile.

As a member of the FHLB systemn, PSB is required to hold stock in the FHLB based on total assets and
anticipated level of long-term borrowings o be advanced to its bank subsidiary. This stock has a purchase
cost and par value of $100 per share. The stock is recorded at cost which approximates market value.
Transfer of the stock is substantially restricted. The FHLB pays dividends in both cash and additional
shares of stock. During the three years ended December 31, 2005, FHLB dividends have been in the form
of additional shares of stock. In accordance with industry accounting conventions, PSB records FHLB
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dividends in the form of stock as income in the year received. The average dividend rate paid to PSB on
FHLB stock was 5.48%, 5.87%, and 6.46% in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Due (o limitations on
future dividends recently announced by the FHLB, management expects the yield on FHLB stock to
decline during 2006 to a level betwcen 3.00% and 3.50%. The FHLB system banks have been criticized
recently by federal regulators and required to submit capital plans and register their capital stock with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Due to this heightened level of regulatory oversight and in
recognition of stock transfer restrictions, PSB’s investment in FITLB stock has been evaluated for
impairment and will be evaluated annually in the future.

Loans Receivable

Total loans as presented in the following table include loans held for sale to the secondary market and
expected final fully disbursed principal on construction loans not yet fully disbursed at year-end. Total
loans receivable as presented in the table below increased 8.5%, 13.2%, and 18.6% at December 3 1, 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively. During 2005, loan growth was predominantly in the commercial and
industrial category as PSB sought larger local commercial customers as part of the strategic initiative in the
commercial lending and treasury management area. During 2005, loan growth occurred predominantly in
the PSB home market in Marathon County, Wisconsin.

During 2004, the majority of growth was split between commercial real estate and residential real estate
mortgages. During 2003, the majority of this growth also came from additional real cstate loans, both
commercial real cstate and residential 15 year fixed rate first mortgages that (it into PSB’s asset-liability
management plans. During 2004, loan growth was widespread over all branch locations, whilc in 2003,
approximately $23 million of PSB’s $50 million in total 2003 growth was originated by PSB’s new
Rhinelander, Wisconsin branch location which opened durin g August 2002.
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Table 15: Loan Composition

As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 ) 2002 2001
% of % of Y% of % of % of
Amount  Total Amount  Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

Commercial,
industrial, municipal
and agricultural $86,070 22.18% $ 72,456 20.25% $ 66,934 21.17% $ 64,527 24.21% $ 64,503 26.38%

Commercial rcal
estate mortgage 149,538 38.53% 145,856 40.77% 128,290 40.58% 102,238 38.35% 84,150 3441%

Real estate construction
(commercial and
residential) 46,259 11.92% 38,308 10.71% 37.639 11.91% 26,052 9.77% 15,609 6.38%

Residential real
estate mortgage 87205 2247% 82696 2311% 66,065 20.90% 55,078 20.66% 61,787 2527%

Residential real estate
mortgage held for sale 0.00% 342 0.10% 207 0.07% 949  0.36% 1,403 0.57%

Residential rcal
estate home equitly 13,058  3.37% 11,620 3.25% 9,252 2.93% 7,274  2.73% 4576  1.87%

Consumer and
individual 5919 1.53% 6,482  1.81% 7,728  2.44% 10439  3.92% 12,522  5.12%

Totals $388,049 100.00% $357,760 100.00% $316,115 100.00% $266,557 100.00% $244,550 100.00%

Commercial real estate growth drove PSB loan growth for several years prior to 2005. However, growth in
the commercial real estate category has stabilized, while commercial and industrial loans continue to
increase from a focus on this customer segment. PSB hired an additional experienced commercial lender
late in 2004 to lead the treasury management initiative for PSB and expects commercial loan principal to
experience continued growth. However, many of the these relationships are expected to carry large
aggregate loan balances secured by the customer’s operating cash flow in connection with a line of credit
tied to treasury management services. This type of lending requires a more sophisticated initial and
ongoing credit analysis and could increase the relative size of individual loan charge-offs in the event of a
problem loan. Average commercial and industrial and commercial real estate loan principal balances,
excluding unused lines of credit, were $230 as of December 31, 2005.

Commercial real estate loans are originated for a broad range of business purposes including non-owner
occupied office rental space, multi-family rental units, owner occupied manufacturing facilities, and owner
occupied retail sales space. PSB has little lending activity for agricultural purposes. Management of PSB
is involved in the communities served by PSB and believes it has a strong understanding of the local
economy, its business leaders, and trends in successtul business development. Based on this knowledge,
PSB offers flexible terms and efficient approvals which have allowed it to make inroads in this type ol
lending.

Residential mortgage lending retained in-house increased during 2005 primarily from rising long-term
secondary market rates relative to PSB’s I, 2, and 3 year balloon products making such in-house balloon
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products more competitive versus secondary market rates. In addition, PSB retains second mortgage loans
on certain high value homes requiring total financing above the conforming secondary market limit after
selling the first mortgage into the secondary market. These second mortgages generally carry balloon
payment terms of five years or less. During 2004, a residential loan program aimed at high value vacation
homes in the Wisconsin Northwoods in connection with a new branch location increased the amount of
loans held in-house.

During 2003, despite the trend of customer mortgage refinancing into the sccondary market offering low
long-term rates, the amount of residential real estate mortgages held increased from the year earlier period
by a substantial amount. The increase in residential mortgages during 2003 is from retaining some 15 ycar
fixed rate mortgages rather than sclling the principal 1o the secondary market. These mortgages were
retained as part of an asset-liability management strategy to maximize net interest margin without a
significant increase in interest rate risk due to the current cash and projected liquidity position in light of
interest sensitivity of the entire balance sheet and opportunities for re-investment of investment securily
cash flows into loans or other new sccurities. The amount of 15 year fixed rate mortgages originated by the
program during 2003 was approximately $12.0 million with an average yield of 4.95%. Approximately
one-half of this production was funded by maturing and prepaid morigage related investment securities
during this period. This program was discontinued during August 2003,

In addition to residential real estate loans retained by PSB and recognized on the balance sheet, PSB also
serviced $169,708 at December 31, 2005, and $160,225 at December 31, 2004 of residential real ¢state
loans which have been sold to the FHLB under the MPF. As part of the asset/liability and interest rate
sensitivity management strategy, PSB generally does not retain long-term 15 to 30 year fixed rate
mortgages in its own portfolio. These serviced loans are not recognized on PSB’s balance sheet.

Real estate construction loans grew $7,951, or 20.8% during 2005 compared to growth of $669, or 1.8%
during 2004. Loans in this classification are primarily short-term loans that provide financing for the
acquisition or development of commercial real estate, such as multi-family or other commercial
development projects. PSB rctains permanent financing on these projects following completion of
construction in a majority of cases.

Installment loans include short-term personal loans, automobile loans, recreational vehicle loans, and credit
card loans. PSB experiences extensive competition from local credit unions offering low rates on
installment loans and has directed resources toward more profitable lending categories such as residential
fixed rate mortgages and commercial real cstate lending during the past several years. However, due to
income tax advantages, many customers appeared to borrow on a tax deductible home equity line of credit
for many purposes formerly funded by a consumer installment loan. Total home equity and installment
loans were $18,977, $18,102, and $16,980 at December 3 1, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

The following table categorizes loan principal by scheduled maturity and does not take into account any
prepayment options held by the borrower. The loan portfolio is widely diversified by types of borrowers,
industry groups, and market areas. Significant loan concentrations are considered to exist for a financial
institution when there are amounts loaned to numerous borrowers engaged in similar activities that would
cause them to be similarly impacted by economic conditions. At December 3 1, 2005, no concentrations
existed in PSB’s portfolio in excess of 10% of total loans.
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Table 16: Loan Maturity Distribution and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Loan Maturity

As of December 31, 2005: One year Over one year Over
or less to five years five years

Commercial, industrial, municipal

and agricultural $ 49,575 $ 35,829 $ 666
Commercial real estate mortgage 62,382 77,388 9,768
Real estate construction 46,259
Residential real estate mortgage 26,143 36,997 24,005
Residential real estate mortgage held for sale - - -
Residential real estate home equity 13,058 - -
Consumer and individual 2910 2,769 240
Totals $200,327_ $152,983 $34,739
Fixed rate $145,595 $34,739
Variable rate 7,388 —
Totals _ . $152,983 $34,739

Allowance for Loan Losses

The loan portfolio is the primary asset subject to credit risk. Credit risk is controlled through the use of
credit standards, review of potential borrowers, and loan payment performance. During 2005, provisions to
the allowance for loan losses were greatly reduced, for reasons outlined carlier under the section “Provision
for Loan Losses.” The reduced provision lowered the allowance for loan losses to 1.11% of loans from
1.19% of loans as of December 31, 2004 despite lower net charge-offs during 2005. As of December 31,
2005, the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans was 150.6% compared to
148.3%, at December 31, 2004. In addition to coverage from the allowance for loan losses, nonperforming
loans are secured by various collateral including real estate and consumer collateral.

During 2004, the allowance for loan losses increased as net loan charge-offs declined significantly
compared to the prior year, while provisions increased slightly. During 2003 the allowance for loan losses
as a percentage of gross loans declined due to an improvement in portfolio quality and charge-oft of a
significant problem loan identified during 2002.
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Table 17: Loan Loss Experience

Years ¢cnded December 31 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Average balance of loans for period $368.626  $329,133  $282.006 _$249,247 $226.819

Allowance for loan losses at
beginning of year $4,157 $3,536 $3,158 $2,969 $2,407

Loans charged off:
Commerecial, industrial, municipal,

and agricultural 55 116 243 628 148
Commercial real estate mortgage - - - - -
Residential real estate mortgage 61 85 170 201 75
Consumer and individual 54 65 109 156 107
Total charge-offs 170 266 522 985 330

Recoverics on loans previously charged-off:
Commercial, industrial, municipal,

and agricultural 24 1 44 33 1
Commercial real cstate mortgage - - - - -
Residential real estate mortgage - 10 5 6 -
Consumer and individual 9 21 16 25 1
Total recoveries 33 32 63 64 2
Net loans charged-off 137 234 457 921 328
Provision for loan losscs 160 855 835 1.110 890

Allowance for loan losscs at
end of year $4.180 $4.157 $3,536_ $3.158 32,969

Ratio of net charge-offs
during the vear to average loans 0.04% 0.07% 0.16% 0.37% 0.14%

Ratio of allowance for loan losses
to loans receivable at end of vear 1.11% 1.19% 1.15% 1.22% 1.24%

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of an amount adequate to provide for
potential losses in the loan portfolio. Adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on management’s
ongoing review and grading of the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, trends in past due and
nonperforming loans, and current economic conditions. PSB has an internal risk analysis and review staff
that continuously reviews loan quality.

Net loans charged off declined to .04% of average loans during 2005 compared to .07% in 2004 and .16%
for 2003. Loans charged off are subject to continuous review and specific efforts are taken to achieve
maximum recovery of principal, accrucd interest, and related expenses, During 2002, PSB was notified ol
the bankruptcy of a large commercial loan customer in which it was not the lcad lender. Due to inadequatc
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collateral protection, an additional $270 of loan loss provisions were recorded during 2002 to cover
estimated principal losses not specifically identilicd and reserved previously, A charge-off of $376 was
also recorded during 2002 on this relationship. During 2003, the remaining principal balance of $211 on
this relationship ([ully reserved in the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2002) was charged off
during 2003. Scparate from these charge-offs, net charge-offs to average loans would have been .09%
during 2003 and .22% during 2002.

The allocation of the year-end allowance for loan losses for each of the past five ycars based on
management’s estimates of loss exposure by category of loans is shown in the following table. The
allocation methodology applied by PSB focuses on changes in the size and character of the loan portfolio,
current and expected economic conditions, the geographic and industry mix of the loan portfolio, and
historical losses by category. The total allowance 1s available to absorb lossces from any scgment of the
portfolio. Management allocates the allowance [or loan losses by pools of risk and by loan type. PSB
combines estimates of the allowance needed for loans analyzed individually and loans analyzed on a pool
basis. The determination of allocated rescerves for larger commercial loans involves a review of individual
higher-risk transactions, focusing on loan grading, and assessment of specific loss content and possible
resolutions of problem credits. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans,
future adjustments may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions.

Table 18: Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses
As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

% of % of % of % of % of
Dollar principal Dollar principal Dollar principal Dollar principal Dollar principal

Commercial, industrial,
municipal, and agricultural $2,082  2.42% $1,989  2.75% $2,002  2.99% $1,919 2.97% $1,738 2.69%
Commercial real estate

mortgage 1,680  0.86% 1,635 089% 1,022 0.62% 569  0.45% 417  0.43%
Residential real estate

mortgage 170 0.17% 221 0.23% 205 0.27% 167  0.27% 174 0.26%
Consumer and individual 53 0.90% 62  0.96% 52 0.67% 72 0.69% 89 0.71%
Impaircd loans 195 8.72% 250 17.73% 255 15.67% 431 30.33% 551 26.09%

Unallocated - _ _ _

Totals .. 54,180 $4,157 $3.536 $3,158 $2.969

Nonperforming loans are defined as loans 90 days or more past due but still accruing, nonaccrual loans,
including those defined as impaired under current accounting standards, and restructured loans. Loans are
generally placed on nonaccrual status when contractually past due 90 days or more as to interest or
principal payments. Previously accrued and uncollected interest on such loans is reversed, and income is
recorded only to the extent that interest payments are subsequently received and principal is collectible.

Also included in nonperforming loans are restructured loans. Restructured loans involve the granting of
concessions to the borrower involving the modification of terms of the loan, such as changes in payment
schedule or interest rate, or capitalization of unpaid real estate taxes or unpaid interest. The majority of
restructured loans represent capitalized loan principal and/or interest and real estate taxes that borrowers
were unable to repay according to the original repayment terms. Such loans are subject to senior
management review and ongoing monitoring and arc made in cases where the borrower’s delinquency is
considered short-term from circumstances the borrower is believed able to overcome.




Table 19: Nonperforming Loans and Foreclosed Assets

As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Nonaccrual loans not considered impaired $1,058 $1,555 $1,898 $ 750 $1,801
Nonaccrual impaired loans 1,335 619 1,221 1,036 1,235
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more - - - - -

Restructured loans 382 628 216 647 999
Total non-performing loang . $2,775 $2,802 $3,335 $2.433 34,035
Foreclosed assets . _ $ 373 $ 7 $ 84 $ 3573 $ 4
Impaired loans accruing income $ 902 $ 791 $_406 $ 38 _§ 877

Total non-performing loans as a percent
_of gross loans recejvable .. 0.74% 0.80% 1.08% 0.94% 1.68%

Nonperforming loans at December 31, 2005, decreased by $27 to $2,775 from $2,802 at December 31,
2004. Nonperforming loans to gross loans was .74% at December 31, 2005, compared to .80% at
December 2004. PSB also tracks dclinquencies on a contractual basis quarter to quarter since some
problem loans currently making payments remain on non-accrual status until ongoing ability to repay
according to the contract is shown. Loans contractually delinquent 30 days or more as a percentage of
gross loans were .98% at December 2005 compared to .56% at December 2004 and .63% at December
2003. The increase in delinquencics at December 2005 involved two borrowers in separate industries in
situations expected to be worked out during 2006 with minimal loss potential. Without these two

borrowers, loans contractually delinquent 30 days or morc as a percentage of gross loans would be .73% at
December 2005.

Interest payments on nonaccrual and impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless collectibility
of the principal amount is fully assured, in which case interest is recognized on the cash basis. The interest
that would have been reported in 2005 if all such loans had been current throughout the year in accordance
with their original terms was $192 in comparison to $144 actually collected. The net reduction in interest
income during 2004 and 2003 as a result of discontinuing the accrual of interest on loans that were
delinquent for 90 days or more was $85 and $142, respectively.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As a FHLB MPF oan servicer, PSB has provided a credit enhancement guarantee to reimburse the FHLB
for foreclosure losses in excess of 1% of the original loan principal sold to the FHLB. At December 31,
2005, the maximum obligation for such guarantees would be approximately $1,132 if total foreclosure
losses on the entire pool of approximatety $170 million loans cxceeded $3,300. At December 3 1, 2004, the
maximum obligation for such guarantees was approximately $743 if total foreclosure losses on the entire
pool of approximately $160 million loans exceeded $2,951. Tn exchange for this guarantee, PSB is paid a
“credit enhancement” fce, These [irst mortgage loans are underwritten using standardized criteria
considered by management to be conservative on residential properties in PSB’s local communities.
Management believes loans serviced for the FHLB will realize minimal foreclosure losses in the futurc and
that PSB will experience no loan losses related to charge-offs in excess of the FHLB 1% loss pool. The
central and northern Wisconsin residential real estate market has not experienced the run-up in home values
seen by other parts of the country. The average residential first mortgage originated by PSB under the
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FHLB program was approximately $133 in 2005 and $121 during 2004. Management does not expect to
be significantly impacted by loss exposure if housing values drop from a substantial increase in future
mortgage lending rates.

Under bank regulatory capital rules, this recourse obligation to the FHLB is risk-weighted for the purposes
of the total capital to risk-weighted assets capital calculation. Total risk-based capital required to be held
for the recourse obligations under the FHLB MPF programs was $673 at December 31, 2005. During
2006, as new loans continue to be originated under the new program, risk based capital nceds will increase
cqual to additional recourse obligations. However, in light of the existing capital structure of PSB and
anticipated activity in loan originations during 2006, management does not expect these capital
requirements to impact operations in the near-term.

PSB is party to limited off balance sheet activity but did enter into a stand alone interest rate swap to
convert fixed rate funding to variable during 2005. The $10 million interest rate swap had a 3.5 year term
with an initial counterparty call after 1 year. Following the initial call option, the issuer has optional call
options every 6 months until maturity. Under the arrangement, PSB pays floating rate funding equal to 30
day LIBOR less 2.5 basis points, and receives 4.25% fixed payments due on the hedged wholesale funding.
Both the swap and wholesale funding are marked to fair value and were not fully effective during 2005,
The impact to net income of ineffectivencss was insignificant during 2005. See Item 8, Note 14 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional derivative information.

Other significant off-balance sheet financial instruments include the various loan commitments outlined in
Item 8, Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. These lending commitments are a
traditional and customary part of lending operations and many of the commitments are expected to expire
without being drawn upon.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

PSB has experienced substantial internal asset growth during the past several years while maintaining
similar equity capital relative to asset size. During 2005 and 2004, this growth was funded primarily by
retail and large local depositors, while in 2003 this growth was funded primarily by wholesale depositors
and FHLB advances. These sources of wholesale funding are limited both by the wholesale lender’s ability
to raise individual depositor funds and by internal policy limitations on aggregate exposure to use of such
funds. Increased loans to customers have been the most significant use of these funds. The table below
outlines in summary form the sources and uses of cash for the three years ending December 31, 2005.
These sources and uses of funds and their impact on past and future growth is discussed in depth later in
this analysis of liquidity.
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Table 20: Summary Sources and Uses of Cash

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities $ 5912 § 4,864 $ 7,348
Payment of dividends to stockholders and purchase of treasury stock (1,596) (1,662) (1,551
Operating cash flow retained by PSB 4,316 3,202 5,797
Additional financing received from retail and local depositors, net 27,086 36,633 9,995
Additional financing received from wholesale depositors, net 15,225 5,178 8,589
Procceds from additional FHLB advances, net 2,000 5,000 9,000
Proceeds from additional other borrowings, net - - 7,173
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debenturcs 7,481 - -

Proceeds (rom additional capital received from stockholders 48 63 -

Cash flow retained from operations and financing beforc debt repayment 56,156 50,076 40,554

Repayment of other borrowings, net (4.068) (L910)

Cash flow retained from operations and financing after debt repayment 52,088 48,166 40,554
Funds received from sale and maturitics of investment securitics, net - 2,726 7,368
Proceeds from sale of nonmonetary assets 71 47 280
Cash flows available for investing activities 52,159 50,939 48.202
Funds loaned 10 customers, net (29,002)  (40,302) (48,915)
Funds invesied in securitics, net (14,166) — —
Funds used to purchase Federal Home Loan Bank stock - (271)

Funds used 1o purchase bank-owned life insurance (4,645) - -
Capital expenditures (1,066) (5,969) (1.912)
Cash flows used in investing activities (48.879)  (46.542) (50.827)
Net increasc (decrease) in cash held at beginning of year $ 3280 $ 4397 $(2,625)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 23,324 18,927 21,552
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear $26,604 $23324 $18927
Deposits

Core retail deposits are PSB’s largest source of funds. PSB considers core retail deposits to include
noninterest-bearing demand deposits, intercst bearing demand and savings deposits, money market demand
deposits, and retail time deposits less than $100. Core retail deposits represented 54.7%, 54.7%, and 55.7%
of total asscts as of Deccmber 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The rate of growth in average local
deposits has increased stcadily during the past three years and was 12.9% for 2005. This growth was
driven in 2005 by large balance high yield municipal and individual accounts. PSB’s retail deposit growth
is continuously influenced by competitive pressure from other financial institutions, as well as other
investment opportunities available to customers. To continue asset growth, deposit growth was
supplemented by additional wholesale certificate of deposits (and additional FHLB advances). The
following table outlines the average distribution of deposits during the three years ending December 31,
2005.
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Table 21: Average Deposits Distribution

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Interest Interest Interest
Amount __ Rate paid Amount  Rate paid Amount _Rate paid
Noninterest bearing
demand deposits $ 53,285 n/a $ 49,600 n/a $46,876 n/a
Interest bearing demand
and savings deposits 69,894 1.72% 52,982 0.70% 40,518 0.61%
Money market demand deposits 70,042 1.74% 66,494 0.92% 69,238 1.00%
Retail and local time deposits 122,769 3.29% 110,925 2.77% 99,851 3.19%
Wholesalg time deposits 65,566 3.90% 56,042 3.09% 44,232 3.46%
Totals .. $381,556 2.36% $336,043 1.72% $300.715 1.88%

Average retail

12.85% 9.17% 5.04%

13.54% 11.75% 8.54%

Due to the increasingly competitive nature of time deposit funding, both locally and nationally, PSB
believes transactional based deposits to be the best source of low-cost funding in the long-term. Such
personal and commercial deposits are attracted and retained through factors other than interest rate alone,
including high level of customer service, network of deposit taking branches, and convenience of use, and
provide a high level of fee based income and available short-term liquidity via clearing float. Therefore,
PSB actively promotes transactional based deposit products. This emphasis is reflected in an increase in
average noninterest bearing demand deposits during the past several years.

During the past three years, average interest bearing demand and money market deposits increased due to
new municipal and government agency deposits and high balance, high yield NOW accounts. During
2005, PSB committed greater resources to cxpand deposits from these types of customers. As of
December 31, 2005, high yield deposits totaled approximately $52,270 compared to deposits of $28,066 at
December 31, 2004. Sale of high yield deposits is led by the need to fund loan growth. If the pace of
future loan growth declines, the level of high yield deposit growth seen during 2005 and 2004 may not be
repeated during 2006, The emphasis on originating high balance, high yield NOW and MMDA accounts to
municipalities and individuals contributed to the increase in yield paid on core deposit accounts, in addition
to the market based increases in short-term rates during 2005. Total high yield NOW and MMDA accounts
represented 87% of total core deposit growth during 2005.

Retail time deposits increased during 2005 and 2004 in part due to large local deposits collected under the
“Certificate of Deposit Account Registry System” (CDARS), a nation-wide program in which network
banks work together to obtain greater FDIC insurance on deposits through sharing of banking charters.
Average balances of CDARS deposits were $8,864 during 2005, $5,022 during 2004, and $67 during 2003,
PSB became a member of this program during 2003. For regulatory purposes, these deposits arc
considered brokered deposits and disclosed as such on quarterly regulatory filings. However, for intcrnal
and external reporting other than for Call Report purposes, these deposits are considered to be retail
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deposits since the terms of the account are sct directly between PSB and its local customer on a retail basis.
Accordingly, these deposits are included as “Retail time deposits $100 and over” in Table 20. Total
CDARS deposits totaled $10,697 and $7,666 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Other
increascs in retail and local time deposit average balances are from normal deposit collection activities and
promotions.

During 2005, the average yield paid on wholesale time deposits compared 10 retail deposits increased
substantially, while comparison of yield on those two products remained similar in 2003 and 2004. The
2005 increase is due to wholesale funding costs rising much faster than local retail costs. Typically
wholcsale costs move much more quickly than local deposit costs due to national market interest rate
changes. Therefore, continued short-term rate pricing increascs were reflected sooner in wholesale deposits
increasing the spread over local deposit yields.

Table 22: Period-End Deposit Composition

As of December 31, 2005 2004
3 % $ %

Non-interest bearing demand $ 61,345 15.3% $ 51,635 14.4%
Interest-bearing demand and savings 79,644 19.9% 64,574 18.0%
Money market deposits 66,625 16.6% 68,666 19.2%
Retail time deposits less than $100 69,198 17.3% 63,993 17.8%
Total core deposits 276,812 69.1% 248,868 69.4%
Retail time deposits $100 and over 54,601 13.6% 55,459 15.5%
Broker & national time deposits

less than $100 1,727 0.4% 4,594 1.3%
Broker & national time deposits $100

and over 67,396 16.9% 49.304 13.8%
Totals _ $400,536 100.0% _ 8358225 100.0%

Table 23: Change in Deposit Composition
% Change from prior yr

At December 31, 2003 2004 2005 2004
Total time deposits $100 and over $121,997  $104,763 16.5% 33.4%
Total broker and national time deposits 69,123 53,898 28.2% 10.6%
Total retail time deposits 123,799 119,452 3.6% 20.1%
Core deposits, including money market deposits 276,812 248,868 11.2% 9.3%

Large time deposits and wholesale broker deposits continue to grow and were 24.4% and 24.0% of total
assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. However, growth in retail time deposits and local
“core” deposits accelerated compared to prior years and grew 11.2% during 2005. During late 2004, PSB
created a new treasury management product team in part to organize collection of non-maturity deposits
trom municipalities and corporate cash management accounts and lessen reliance on large CD deposits as a
primary funding source. PSB believes it has competitively priced deposit products in its local markets and
actively promoted them during 2005.
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PSB policy allows broker funds to be used up to 20% of total assets. Available and unused broker deposits
were approximately $32,109 and $37,097 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, under this policy.
The table below outlines maturities of time deposits of $100 or more, including broker and retail time
deposits. Management is aware of the potential volatility of broker deposits due to funds flowing out of the
banking system and into other investment vchicles, and other factors, that could increase the incremental
cost of obtaining these types of deposits. Broker deposits represent just one potential wholesale financing
source in addition to FHLB advances and repurchase agreements.

Table 24: Maturity Distribution of Certificates of Deposit of $100 or More

At December 31, 2005 Balance Rate
3 months or less $ 9,930 3.51%
Over 3 months through 6 months 13,909 3.64%
Over 6 months through 12 months 38,321 3.98%
Over | ycar through 5 years 55,869 4.25%
Qver 5 years 3,968 4.04%
Totals . $121997 .. . 4.03%

Contractual Obligations

PSB is party to various contractual obligations requiring use of funds as part of its normal operations. The
table below outlines the principal amounts and timing of these obligations, excluding amounts due for
interest, if applicable. Most of these obligations, including time deposits, are routinely refinanced into a
similar replacement obligation without requiring any substantial outflow of cash. However, renewal of
these obligations is dependent on PSB’s ability to offer competitive market equivalent interest rates or
availability of collateral for pledging such as retained mortgage loans or securitics as in the case of
advances from the FHLB. PSB’s funds management policy includes a formal liquidity contingency plan to
identify low cost and liquid funds available in the event of a liquidity crisis.

Table 25: Long-Term Contractual Obligations at December 31, 2005

Principal payments due by period
Total <1 year 1-3 years 3-S5 years =5 years

Time deposits $192,922 $106,353  $59,049  $23,532 $3,988
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances 54,000 6,000 19,000 29,000 -
Other long-term borrowings 2,759 989 1,353 417 -
Junior subordinated debentures 7,732 - - - 7,732
Deferred compensation agreements 655 - - 6355
Post-rctirement health insurance benefits plan 248 21 46 44 137
Branch bank opcrating lease commitments 114 46 68 - -

Premises and equipment pyrchase commitments - - — - -

Total contractual obligations _$258.430 S$113,409  $79,516  $52993 $12.512
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Liquidity, Funding Sources, and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Primary short-term and long-term funding sources other than retail deposits include federal funds
purchased from other correspondent banks, repurchasc agreements from security pledging, advances from
the FHLB, and use of wholcsale time deposits. The following table outlines the available and unused
portion of these (unding sources (based on collateral and/or company policy limitations) as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004. During 2006, PSB expects total net asset growth from existing markets 1o be
approximately $45 million, a significant portion of which is expected to be funded by use of funding
sources other than deposits,

Table 26: Available but Unused Funding Sources other than Retail Deposits:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Unused, but Amount Unused, but Amount

Available Used Available Used

Overnight [ederal funds purchased $ 32,500 $ - $22,500 $ -

FHLB advances under blanket mortgage lien 27.616 54,000 14,855 52,000
Repurchase agreements 27,081 4,497 12,871 8,565
Wholesale market time deposits 32.109 69,123 37,097 53,898
Total available but unused funds i $119.306 $127,620 $87,323 $114,463
Funding as a percent of total assets 23.6% 25.2% 19.2% 25.2%

Overnight federal funds purchased totaling $32,500 are available through four correspondent banks. These
lines are not supported by a formal written arrangement, but represent best cfforts ability on the part of
correspondent banks to raise these funds. During 2005, average daily federal funds purchased were $2,338
compared 10 $2,140 during 2004. The cost of these funds is subject to change based on changes in the
discount rate as determine by the Federal Reserve. PSB may maintain a continuous position in overnight
federal funds purchased up to 14 days before amounts must be liquidated for at least one business day.
Considcration of the need for federal funds purchased is part of PSB’s daily cash management and funding
procedures and represents the (irst source of liquidity as needed.

Under the existing credit line with the FHLB described in Ttem 8, Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, PSB may borrow up to 75% of qualifying existing mortgage loan collateral. Prior to
2005, PSB could borrow up to 61% of qualifying existing mortgage collateral. Tn addition, PSB may
pledge certain investment securities to obtain additional tunding under repurchase agreements. FHLB
advances carry substantial penalties for early prepayment that are generally not recovered from the lower
interest rates in refinancing. The amount of early prepayment penalty is a function of the difference
between the current borrowing rate, and the rate currently available for refinancing. FHLB advance
funding may be obtained for various terms on a daily basis at PSB’s request, and represents PSB’s second
source of liquidity as needed after federal funds purchased.

Repurchase agrecments represent overnight and long-term funding in exchangg for securitics owned by
PSB for a designated time period for an agreed upon interest ratc. Ttem 8, Note 9 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements outlines the activity in these other borrowings and federal funds
purchased during the three years ending December 31, 2005. Although PSB does not currently have any
repurchase agreements with the FHLB, it does have a written agreement providing for their use in exchange
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for securities held. An additional $27,081 and $12,871 of FHLB funding could have been obtained upon
pledge of these available sccurities as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As described in the changes in deposits and deposit activity above, wholesale broker deposits have
represented a growing source of asset growth funding during the past several years. PSB’s policy allows
up to 20% ol assets 1o be funded with wholesale time deposits. Wholesale time deposits as a percentage of
assets were 13.7%, 11.8%, and 11.9% of total assets at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

PSB’s asset-liability management process provides a unified approach to management of liquidity, capital,
and interest rate risk, as well as providing adequate funds to support the borrowing requirements and
deposit {low of its customers. Management views liquidity as the ability to raise cash at a reasonable cost
or with a minimum of loss and as a measure of balance sheet flexibility to react to marketplace, regulatory,
and competitive changes.

Management’s overall strategy is to coordinate the volume of rate sensitive assets and liabilities to
minimize the impact of interest rate movement on the net interest margin. Table 27 represents PSB’s
carning sensitivity to changes in interest rates at December 31, 2005. It is a static indicator which does not
reflect various repricing characteristics and may not indicate the sensitivity of net interest income in a
changing interest rate environment. The following repricing methodologies should be noted in Table 27:

L. Money market deposit accounts and high yield intcrest bearing demand (NOW) accounts are
considered fully repriced within 90 days. Retail priced NOW and savings deposits are considered
“corc” deposits as they are generally insensitive to interest rate changes. These deposits are
considered to reprice beyond 5 years.

2. Nonaccrual loans are considered to reprice beyond 5 years.

3. Assets and liabilities with contractual calls or prepayment options are repriced according to the
likelihood of the call or prepayment being exercised in the current interest rate environment,

Table 27 reflects a necarly neutral gap position in essentially all individual categories until those beyond

1 year. The cumulative one-year gap ratio as of December 31, 2005 was positive at 107.4% compared to
101.0% at December 31, 2004. A significant factor in PSB’s ability to match the repricing of assets and
liabilities in line with the expectations in the table is the ability to delay increases in interest rates paid on
“corc™ deposits such as NOW, savings, and MMDA accounts when market rates begin to increase. PSB
conducts incremental cost analysis of various sources of funding on an ongoing basis and will rely on such
analysis Lo slow core deposit interest rate growth until adjustable rate loan rates benefits from future
increases in the prime lending rate. Although holding a positive gap ratio, net intcrest margin was reduced
during 2005 as assets repriced to a lesser extent than liabilities repricing during that same period.
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Table 27: Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

At December 31, 2005 0-90 Days 91-180 days |81-365 days _1-2 yrs. Bynd 2-5 yrs. Beyond 5 yrs. Total
Earning assets:
Loans $143,324  $ 27,299 $ 49277 $ 54842 % 82,782 § 19,067 $376,591
Securitics 3,545 3,499 9,141 12,762 38,926 13,628 81,501
FHLB stock 3,017 3,017
CSV bank-owned lifc ins. 4,805 4,805
Other eaming assets 10,896 10,896
Total . $160,782 _ § 30,798 $ 58418  § 67,604 $121,708  § 37.500 $476,810
Cumulativce rate
_sepnsitive assets $160,782  $191,580 $249.998 $317,602 $439,310 _ $476,810
Interest-bearing liabilities
Intcrest-bearing deposits  $138,190 $ 26,636 $ 59,303 § 35,791 $ 36,828 $ 42,443 $339,191
FHLB advances 6,000 - - 9,000 39,000 54,000
Other borrowings 1,987 740 614 1,156 4,497
Junior subordinated
debentures 7,732 7.732
Total i . $146,177  $ 27,376 _ $ 59303 _$ 45405 $ 84.716 § 42,443 $405,420
Cumulative intcrest
. sensitive liabilities $146,177  $173.553 $232.856 _$278,261 $362,977 _  $405420
Interest sensitivity gap for
_the individual period $ 14605 _$ 3422 $ (885) $ 22199 § 36992 $ (4,943)
Ratio of rate sensitive assets
to rate sensitive liabilities
_for the individual period 110.0% 112.5% 98.5% . 148.9%  143.7% 88.4%
Cumulative interest
_sensilivity gap 3§ _14.605 $18.027 $17.142  $39.341  $76,333 $71,390
Cumulative ratio of rate
sensitive assels to rate
_sengitive ligbiljties 110.0% 110.4% 107.4%  114.1% _ 121.0% _ 117.6%

PSB uses financial modeling techniques to measure interest rate risk. These policies are intended to limit
exposure of earnings at risk. A formal liquidity contingency plan cxists that directs management to the

least expensive liquidity sources to fund sudden and unanticipated liquidity needs. PSB also uses various
policy measures to assess adequacy of liquidity and interest rate risk as described below.

Basic Surplus

PSB measures basic surplus as the amount of ¢xisting net liquid assets (after deducting short-term liabilities
and coverage for anticipated deposit funding outflows during the next 30 days) divided by total assets. The

basic surplus calculation does not consider unused but available correspondent bank federal funds

purchased, as those funds are subject to availability based on the correspondent bank’s own liquidity neceds
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and therefore are not guaranteed contractual funds. However, basic surplus does include unused but
available FHLB advances under the open line of credit supported by a blanket licn on mortgage collateral.
PSB’s policy is to maintain a basic surplus of at least 5%. Basic surplus was 10.6% and 7.1% at December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk Limits

PSB balances the need for liquidity with the opportunity for increased net interest income available from
longer term loans held for investment and securities. To measure the impact on net interest income from
interest rate changes, PSB models interest rate simulations on a quarterly basis. Changes in interest rates
are assumed (o be a parallel yield curve shift fully implemented over a 12 month time frame. PSB’s policy
is that projected net interest income over the next 12 months will not be reduced by more than 15% given a
change in interest rates of up to 200 basis points. The projected increase (decrease) in net interest income
on the cxisting balance sheet for the next 12 months if rates increased 200 basis points was .69% and
(.04)% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The projected decrease in net intercst income for the
next 12 months if rates decreased 200 basis points was 3.34% and 2.15% at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Core Funding Utilization

To assess whether interest rate sensitivity beyond one year helps mitigate or exacerbate the short-term rate
sensitive position, a quarterly measure of core funding utilization is made. Core funding is defined as
liabilities with a maturity in cxcess of 60 months and capital. Core deposits including DDA, NOW, and
non-maturity savings accounts (except high yield NOW and money market accounts) are also considered
core long-term funding sources, The core funding utilization ratio is defined as assets that reprice in excess
of 60 months divided by corc funding. PSB’s target for the core funding utilization ratio is to remain at
80% or below given the same 200 basis point changes in rates that apply to the guidelines for interest rate
risk limits exposure described previously. PSB’s core fund utilization ratio afier a projected 200 basis
point increase in rates was 51.1% and 46.5% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Capital Adequacy

PSB is required to maintain minimum levels of capital to be considered well-capitalized under current
banking regulation. Refer to Ttem &, Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for these
rcquirements and PSB’s current capital position relative to these requirements. The primary increase in
stockholders’ equity during the three years ending December 31, 2005 has been retained net income not
distributed to stockholders via cash dividends or share buybacks on the open market. Failure to remain
well-capitalized would prevent PSB from obtaining future wholesale broker time deposits which have been
an important source of funding during the past several years. Refer to Item 8, Statement of Changes in
Stockholder’s Equity in the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed activity in the capital accounts.
Avcrage tangible capital to total assets was 7.24%, 7.55%, and 7.86% during 2003, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. The following table presents a reconciliation of stockholders’ equity as presented in the
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 consolidated balance sheets to regulatory capital.
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Table 28: Capital Ratios

December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Stockholders’ equity $35,485 $33,616 $32,141
Junior subordinated debentures, net 7,500 — -
Disallowed mortgage servicing right assets (88) (84) (81
Unrealized (gain) loss on securities available for sale 542 (384) (844)
Tier 1 regulatory capital 43,439 33,148 31,216
Add: allowance for loan losses 4,180 4,157 3,536
Total regulatory capital . $47,619 $37,305 834,752
Total assels $£506,158 $454,974 $408,933
Disallowed mortgage servicing right assets (88) (84) (81)
Unrealized (gain) loss on securitics available for sale 542 (384) (844)
Tangible assets $506,612 $454,506 £408,008
Risk-weighted assets (as defined by current regulations) $392,790 $350,224 $318,005
Tier 1 capital to average tangible assels (leverage ratio) 8.71% 7.40% 7.83%
Tier | capital to risk-weighted assets 11.06% 9.46% 9.82%
Total capital to risk-weighted assets 12.12% 10.65% 10.93%

Regulatory capital increased significantly during 2005 from issuance of trust preferred securities
represcnted by junior subordinated debentures on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2005.
Refer to Ttem 8, Note 10 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed information on the trust
preferred security issue. Trust preferred capital sceurities may provide up to 25% ol PSB’s total Tier |
regulatory capital. As of December, 31, 2005, PSB could utilize up to $4,480 of additional trust preferred
sceurities proceeds as additional Tier | regulatory capital.

On December 16, 2003, PSB declarcd a 5% stock dividend in additional to the regular semi-annual cash
dividend. The stock dividend was paid to stockholders of record as of January 6, 2004 on January 29,
2004. All references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the number of common shares and per share
amounts have been restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend.

PSB maintains an incentive stock option plan approved by stockholders during 2001 as described in Ltem g,
Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2005, all shares available
under the plan have been granted and no shares of common stock remained reserved for future grants.

PSB pays a regular semi-annual cash dividend as described in Item 5 of this Annual Report of Form 10-K,
In addition, PSB maintains an informal, annual, ongoing share repurchase program of up to 1% of
outstanding shares per year as described in Item 5 of this Annual Report of Form 10-K. Although PSB is
currently purchasing treasury shares under the buyback program, management is pursuing a growth
strategy which may require significant capital to be maintained to support asset growth, possibly
eliminating the informal buyback program.
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Critical Accounting Estimates
Allowance for Loan Losses

Current accounting standards call for the allowance for loan losses to include both specific losses on
identified problem loans (Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan™) and “inherent” losses on existing loan pools not yet considered
problem loans (SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies”). Determination of the allowance for loan
losses at period-end is bascd primarily on subjective factors and management assessment of risk in the
existing portfolio. Actual results, il significantly different from that using estimates at period-end, could
have a material impact on the results ol operations.

Loans receivable, for the purpose of estimating the allowance for loan losses, are separated into four
primary categories — residential real estate loan pool, consumer installment loan pool, specifically identified
problem commercial loans, and pools of non-problem commercial purposes loans subcategorized by credit
risk assessment. PSB makes the following estimates and performs the following procedures when setting
the allowance for loan losses at period-end:

1. Categorize existing loan principal into either commercial purpose loans, a pool of residential real
estate loans, or a pool of consumer installment loans.

2. Commercial purpose loans arc subcategorized into credit risk “grades™ based on an internal
determination of risk established during credit analysis and updated no less than annually.
Determination of risk grades takes into account scveral factors including collateral, cash flow,
borrower’s industry environment, financial statement strength, and other factors. PSB uses four
risk grades for non-problem commercial purpose loans.

3. Tdentified problem loans are classified into two additional risk grades and individually reviewed to
determine specific reserves required for each relationship depending on the specific collateral and
timing of cash flows to be received. The allowance for loan losses provided for these problem
loans is based substantially on management’s estimates related the value of collateral, timing of
cash flows to be received from the borrower or sale of the collateral, and likelihood of the specific
borrower’s ability to repay all amounts due without foreclosure of collateral. Management
updates the cash flow analysis of problem loan relationships quarterly.

4.  Other commercial loans not considered to be problem loans are assigned an estimated loan loss
allowance based on historical “inherent” losses for loans of similar credit risk, These allowances
range from .25% of principal to 2.5% of principal depending on the assigned credit risk grade. An
inaccurate assignment of credit risk grade to a loan relationship could significantly change the
actual levels of allowances required for that loan, and therefore management’s assigned of credit
risk is a significant estimate. Management reviews actual long-term losses in comparison to the
inherent losses assigned by credit risk grade and updates allowance percentages as needed.

5. Similar to nonproblem commercial purpose loans, inherent losses are assigned to the residential
real estate loan pool. However, since residential real estate loan risk characteristics are very
similar from borrower to borrower, a flat percentage loss of principal is applied to real estate loans
rather than breaking the pool into subcategories of credit risk. The percentage applied is based
primarily on historical losses on similar residential loan pools. An inaccurate estimate of inherent
losses related to the real estate loan pool could significantly increase the actual levels of
allowances required.
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6. Similar to the residential real estate loan pool, consumer installment loans are assigned an
estimated loss based on a flat percentage of principal outstanding. The percentage applied is based
primarily on historical losscs on similar consumer installment loan pools. An inaccurate estimate
of inherent losses related to the consumer installment loan pool could significantly increase the
actual levels of allowances required.

After calculating the estimate of required allowances for loan losses using the steps above, an analysis of
the level of problem and past due loans is made relative to the aggregate allowance for loan losses
recorded. If past due and problem loans rise significantly, additional unallocated reserves may be recorded
to account for this additional risk of loss before it is recognized by the change in commercial credit risk
grades, or increase in the historical inherent loss percentage assigned to the real estate and consumer
installment loan pools in the allowance for loan losses calculation. As of December 31, 2005, there were
no unallocated loan loss allowances recorded.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

As required by current accounting standards (SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities™), PSB records a mortgage scrvicing right asset
(“MSR") when PSB continues to service borrower payments and maintenance activities on loans in which
the principal has been sold to the FHLB or other secondary market investors. PSB’s MSR calculation is
caleulated on a individual loan level basis and uses public financial market information for many of the
significant estimates. PSB makes the following estimates and performs the following procedures when
accounting for MSRs:

1. Serviced loans arc stratified by risk of prepayment criteria. Currently, strata are first based on the
year in which the loan was originated, then on term, and then on the range of intcrest rates within
that term.

2. PSB uses the discount approach to generale the initial value for the OMSR, It takes the average of
the current dealer consensus on prepayment speeds as reported to Reuters or the prepayment speed
implied in the mortgage backed security prices for newly created loans along with other
assumptions to general an estimate of futurc cash flows. The present value of estimated cash
flows equals the fair value of the OMSR. PSB capitalizes the lower of fair value or cost of the
OMSR. Other than the estimate of public dealer consensus of prepayment specds, significant fair
value and cost estimates include:

> Servicing cost of $60 per loan annually

» Cash flow discount raic of 8.25% to 10%, depending on year of origination

» Short-term reinvestment rate on the float of payments to investors of 3% (rising to
5% in 2006)

Changes in these estimates and assumptions would change the initial value recorded for OMSRs
and change the gain on sale of mortgage loans recorded in the income statement.

3. Amortization of the OMSR is calculated based on actual payment activily on a per loan basis.

Because all loans are handled individually, curtailments decrease MSRs as well as regularly
scheduled payments. The loan servicing valuc is amortized on a level yield basis.
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4. Significant declines in current market mortgage interest rates decrease the fair value of existing -
MSRs due to the increase in anticipated prepayments above the original assumed speed. SFAS
No. 140 requires that impairment testing be performed and that MSRs be recorded at the lower of
fair value or amortized cost. PSB performs quarterly impairment testing on its MSRs. Actual
prepayment speeds (based on actual PSB customer activity on a loan level basis) are compared to
the assumed prepayment speed on the date of the last quarterly impairment testing (or the
origination prepayment speed if a new loan). The fair value assumptions other than prepayment
speed are combined with the new estimated prepayment speed to create a new fair value, An
impairment allowance is recorded for any shortfall between the new fair value and the original
cost after adjusting for past amortization and curtailments.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
The information required by this Item 7A is set forth in Ttem 6, Sclected Financial Data, and under
subcaptions “Results of Operations,” “Market Risk,” “Net Interest Income,” “Provision for Loan Losses,”

“Investment Portfolio,” “Deposits,” and “Liquidity and Interest Scensitivity” under Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
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Ttem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
PSB Holdings, Inc.
Wausau, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shects of PSB Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’
cquity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-ycar period ended December 31, 2005. These
financial statcments are the responsibility of PSB’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are [rce of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes asscssing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonablc basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of PSB Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

W%u LLP

Wipfli LLP

January 20, 2006
Wausau, Wisconsin
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(dollars in thousands except per share data)

Assets 2005 2004
Cash and due from banks $ 15708 % 12,680
Interest-bearing deposits and money market funds 988 3,265
Federal funds sold 9,908 7,379
Cash and cash equivalents 26,604 23,324
Securities available for sale (at fair value) 81,501 68,894
Loans held for sale 0 342
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,180 and $4,157
in 20035 and 2004, respectively 372,411 343,923
Accrued interest receivable 2,245 1,744
Foreclosed assels 373 7
Premises and equipment 12,632 12,432
Mortgage servicing rights, net 880 839
Federal Home Loan Bank stock (at cost) 3,017 2,874
Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance 4,805 0
Other assets 1,690 595
TOTAL ASSETS $506,158  $454,974
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing $ 61,345 § 51,635
Intcrest-bearing 339,191 306,590
Total deposits 400,536 358,225
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 54,000 52,000
Other borrowings 4,497 8,565
Junior subordinated debentures 7,732 0
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,908 2,568
Total liabilitics 470,673 421,358
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock — No par value with a stated value of $1 per share:
Authorized — 3,000,000 sharcs
Issued — 1,887,179 shares 1,887 1,887
Outstanding — 1,705,571 and 1,719,593, respectively
Additional paid-in capital 9,655 9,672
Retained earnings 28,561 25,281
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (542) 384
Treasury stock, at cost — 181,608 and 167,586, respectively (4,076) (3.608)
Total stockholders’ equity 35,485 33,616
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY $506,158  $454,974

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
(dollars in thousands except per share data)

2005 2004 2003
Interest and dividend income:
Loans, including fecs $22.347 $19,207 $17.964
Securities:
Taxable 1,966 1,798 1,943
Tax-exempt 978 982 916
Other interest and dividends 473 215 227
Total interest and dividend income 25,764 22,202 21,050
Interest expense:
Deposits 9,019 5,783 5,651
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 2,133 2,061 1,989
Other borrowings 272 269 229
Junior subordinated debentures 231 0 0
Total interest expense 11,655 8,113 7,869
Net interest income 14,109 14,089 13,181
Provision for loan losses 160 855 835
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 13,949 13,234 12,346
Noninterest mcome:
Service fees 1,188 1,234 1,282
Mortgage banking 880 901 1,767
Investment and insurance sales commissions 689 484 434
Net gain on sale of securities 6 97 80
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 160 0 0
Gain on curtailment of postretirement benefit plan 0 0 131
Other operating income 545 407 417
Total noninterest income 3,468 3,123 4,111
Noninterest expense;
Salaries and employec benefits 6,010 6,189 5,952
Occupancy and facilities 1,767 1,609 1,127
Loss on abandonment of premiscs and equipment 0 379 0
Data processing and other office operations 741 655 547
Advertising and promotion 287 263 172
Other operating expense 1,635 1,880 1,553
Total noninlerest expense 11,040 10,975 9,351
Income before income laxes 6,377 5,382 7,106
Provision for income taxes 2,037 1,856 2,300
Net income $ 4,340 $ 3,526 $ 4,806
Basic earnings per share § 2.53 $ 2.04 $ 2.76
Diluted earnings per share $ 252 $ 2.03 § 2.74

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders® Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

(dollars in thousands except per share data)

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-Tn Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings Income (L.oss) Stock Totals
Balance, January 1, 2003 $1,805 $7,150 $21,607 $1.306 $(2,565) $29,303
Comprehensive income:
Net income 4,806 4,806
Unrealized loss on securities
available for sule, net of tax of $253 (414) (414)
Reclassification adjustment for
net securily gains, included in
nct income, net of tax of $32 (48) 48)
Total comprchensive income 4,344
Purchase of treasury stock (553) (553)
Distribution of treasury stock in
payment of director fees 45 45
Stock dividend declared - 5% of shares 82 2,544 (2,626)
Cash dividends declared $.57 per share (998) (998)
Balance, December 31, 2003 1,887 9,694 22,789 844 (3.073) 32,141
Comprehensive income:
Net income 3,526 3,526
Unrcalized loss on securities
available for sale, nct of tax of $212 (401) (401)
Reclassification adjustment for
net security gains, mcluded in
net income, net of tax of $38 (39 (59
Total comprehensive income 3,066
Purchase of treasury stock (628) (628)
Procceds from stock options
issued out of treasury (22) 85 63
Distribution of treasury stock in
payment of director fees 8 8
Cash dividends declared
$.60 per share (1,034) (1,034)
Balance, December 31, 2004 1,887 9,672 25,281 384 (3,608) 33,616
Comprehensive income:
Net income 4,340 4,340
Unrealized loss on sceuritics
available for sale, net of tax of $505 (922) (922)
Reclassification adjustment for
nct security gains, included in
nel income, net of tax of $2 4) 4
‘Total comprehensive income 3414
Purchase of treasury stock (536) (536)
Proceeds from stock options
issued out of treasury (17) 65 48
Distribution of treasury stock in
payment of director fees 3 3
Cash dividends declared
$.62 per sharc (1,060) (1,060)
Balance, December 31, 2005 $1.887 $9,655 $28,561 $(542) $(4,076) $35,485

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
(dollars in thousands except per share data)
2005 2004 2003

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 4340 § 3,526 % 4,806
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Provision for depreciation and net amortization 1,679 1,529 1,978
Provision for deferred income taxes 200 23 0
Provision for loan losses 160 855 835
Deferred net loan origination costs (512) (306) (259)
Proceeds from sales ol loans held for sale 45,933 41,321 132,845
Originations of loans held for sale (45,278) (41,093)  (130,874)
Gain on sale of loans (598) (697) (2,021)
Provision lor (recapture of) mortgage servicing right
valuation allowance (7 16 (25)
Net gain on sale of premises and equipment 2) 3) 0
Loss on abandonment of premises and equipment 0 379 0
Realized gain on sale of available for sale securities (6) (97) (80)
Net (gain) loss on sale of foreclosed assets 1 (29) 9
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance (160) 0 0
Federal Home Loan Bank siock dividends (143) (159) (180)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued intercst receivable (501) (127) 115
Other assets (537) 103 285
Accruyed expenses and other liabilities 1,343 377 (86)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,912 4,864 7,348
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale and maturities of available-for-sale securities 13,339 19,444 46,515
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale securities (27,505) (16,718) (39,147)
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 0 (271) 0
Net increase in loans (29,002) (40,302) (48,915)
Capital expenditures (1,066) (5.969) (1,912)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 2 3 0
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 69 44 280
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance (4,645) 0 0
Net cash used in investing activities (48,808) (43,769) (43,179)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
(dollars in thousands excepl per sharc data)

2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in non-interest-bearing deposits $ 9710 § 1,072 § 5,106
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits 32,601 40,739 13,478
Proceeds from issuance of long-term FHLB advances 23,000 15,000 25,000
Repayments of long-term FHLB advanccs (21,000) (10,000) (16,000)
Net increase (decrease) in other borrowings (4,068) (1,910) 7,173
Proceeds from issuance ol junior subordinated debentures 7,481 0 0
Dividends declared (1,060) (1,034) (998)
Proceeds from issuance of stock options 43 63 0
Purchase of treasury stock (536) (628) (553)
Net cash provided by financing activities 46,176 43,302 33,206
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,280 4,397 (2,625)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning 23,324 18,927 21,552
Cash and cash equivalents at end $26,604 $23,324 $18,927
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $11,269 § 7935 § 8,088
Income taxes 1,692 1,935 2,265
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Loans charged ofT $ 170 $ 2066 § 522
Loans transferred to foreclosed assets 436 0 178
Loans originated on sale of foreclosed assets 0 110 379
Distribution ol treasury stock in payment of
director fees 3 8 45
Common stock of PSB Holdings Statutory Trust I acquired in
exchange for junior subordinated debentures 232 0 0
Transfer of ¢quity from retained earnings for
5% stock dividend 0 0 2,626

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

57



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (dollars in thousands except per share data)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principal Business Activity

PSB Holdings, Inc. operates Pcoples State Bank, a full-service financial institution with a primary service
arca including, but not limited to, Marathon, Oneida, and Vilas Counties, Wisconsin. It provides a variety
of banking products, including uninsured investment and insurance products, long-term fixed rate
residential mortgages, and commercial treasury management services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PSB Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiary Peoplcs
State Bank. Peoples State Bank owns and operates a Nevada subsidiary, PSB Investments, Inc,, to manage
the Bank’s investment securities. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
¢liminated. The accounting and reporting policics of PSB conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and to the general practices within the banking industry. Any reference to “PSB”
refers (o the consolidated or individual operations of PSB Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiary Peoples State
Bank.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reporicd amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows in the consolidated financial statements, cash and cash equivalents
include cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits and moncy market funds, and federal funds
sold, all of which have original maturities of three months or less.

Securities

Securities arc assigned an appropriate classification at the lime of purchase in accordance with
management’s intent. Securities held to maturity represent those debt securities for which PSB has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. PSB has no held-to-maturity securities.

Trading securities include those securities bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the
near future. PSB has no trading securities.

Securities not classified as either securities held to maturity or trading securities are considered available
for sale and reported at fair value determined from estimates of brokers or other sources. Unrealized gains
and losses are excluded from earnings but are reported as other comprchensive income, net of income tax
effects, in a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts are recognized in interest income using the intercst method over the estimated lives of the
securities.
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Declines in fair value of securities that are deemed to be other than temporary, if applicable, are reflected in
earnings as realized losses. In cstimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers
the length of time and the extent 1o which fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer, and the intent and ability of PSB to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the sale of
securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific-identification method.

Loans Held for Sale

PSB sells substantially all long-term fixed-rate single-family mortgage loans it originates to the secondary
market. The gain or loss associated with sales of single-family mortgage loans is recorded as a component
of mortgage banking revenue.

Originations and sales of single-family mortgage loans will vary significantly from period to period
depending on customer preferences for fixed-rate mortgage loans and customer refinance activity.
Accordingly, the gain or loss associated with sales of single-family mortgage loans may vary substantially
from period to period. In general, however, fluctuations in gains or losses on sales of single-family
mortgage loans are offset to some degree by opposiic changes in the amortization of mortgage servicing
rights, which is also recorded as a component of mortgage banking revenue (refer to “Mortgage Servicing
Rights™).

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the sccondary market are carried at the lower of cost or
estimated market value in the aggregate, Net unrcalized losses are recognized through a valuation
allowance by charges to income. Gains and losses on the sale of loans held for sale are determined using
the specific identification method using quoted market prices.

In sales of mortgage loans to the Federal 1lome Loan Bank (“FHLB™), PSB rctains a secondary portion of
the credit risk on the underlying loans in exchange for a credit enhancement fee. When applicable, PSB
records a recourse liability to provide for potential credit losses. Because the loans involved in these
transactions are similar to those in PSB’s loans held for investment, the review of the adequacy of the
recourse liability is similar to the review of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses (refer to
“Allowance for Loan Losses™).

Loans

Loans that management has the intent to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off
generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-ofTs, the allowance
for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Intcrest on loans is credited to income as
earned. Tnterest income is not accrued on loans where management has determined collection of such
interest is doubtful or those loans which are past duc 90 days or more as to principal or intercst payments.
When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, previously accrued but unpaid interest deemed uncollectible is
reversed and charged against current income. Alter being placed on nonaccrual status, additional income is
recorded only to the extent that payments arc received or the collection of principal becomes reasonably
assured. Interest income recognition on loans considered to be impaired under current accounting
standards is consistent with the recognition on all other loans.

Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs arc deferred and recognized as an adjustment
of the rclated loan yield using the interest method.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans
are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management belicves the collectibility of the
principal is unlikely.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover probable credit losses relating to
specifically identified loans, as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan portfolio.
In accordance with current accounting standards, the allowance is provided for losscs that have been
incurred based on events that have occurred as of the balance sheet date. The allowance is based on past
events and current economic conditions and docs not include the effects of expected losses on specific
loans or groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic conditions.
While management uses the best information available to make its cvaluation, future adjustments to the
allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions.

The allowance for loan losses includes specific allowances related to commercial purpose loans which have
been judged to be impaired as defined by current accounting standards. A loan is impaired when, based on
current information, it is probable that PSB will not collect all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Management has determined that commercial, [inancial,
agricultural, and commercial real estate loans that have a nonaccrual status or have had their terms
restructured meet this definition. Large groups of homogeneous loans, such as morigage and consumer
loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment. Specific allowances on impaired loans are based on
discounted cash flows of expected future payments using the loan’s initial effective interest ratc or the fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

In addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses. Thesce agencies
may require PSB to make additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their Judgments of
collectibility based on information available to them at the time of their cxamination.

Foreclosed Assets

Real estate and other property acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure arc initially recorded at fair
value (afier deducting estimated costs to sell) at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis.

Costs related to development and improvement of property are capitalized, whercas costs related to holding
property are expensed. After foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management, and the
real estate or other property is carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs to
sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in any valuation allowance are included in loss
on foreclosed assets,

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally on the straight-line method and is based on the estimated useful lives of the assets varying
primarily from 30 to 40 years on buildings, 5 to 10 years on furniturc and equipment, and 3 years on
computer hardwarc and software. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to cxpense as incurred. Gains
or losses on disposition of property and equipment are reflected in income.
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Mortgage Servicing Rights

PSB continues to service most single-family mortgage loans it sclls to the FHLB. Servicing mortgage
loans includes such functions as collecting monthly payments of principal and interest from borrowers,
passing such payments through to third-party investors, maintaining escrow accounts for taxes and
insurance, and making such payments when they are due. When necessary, servicing mortgage loans also
includes functions related to the collection of delinquent principal and interest payments, loan foreclosure
proceedings, and disposition of foreclosed real estate. PSB generally earns a servicing fee of 25 basis
points on the outstanding loan balance for performing these services as well as fees and interest income
from ancillary sources such as delinquency charges and float. Servicing fee income is recorded as a
component of mortgage banking revenue, net of the amortization and charges described in the following
paragraphs.

PSB records originated mortgage servicing rights (“OMSR”) as a component ol gain on sale ol morigage
loans when the obligation to service such loans has been retained. The initial value recorded for OMSR is
based on the relative values of the servicing fee adjusted for expected future costs to service the loans, as
well as income and fees expected to be received from ancillary sources, as previously described. The
carrying value of OMSR is amortized against service fee income in proportion to estimated gross servicing
revenues, net of estimated costs of servicing, adjusted for expected prepayments. In addition to this
periodic amortization, the carrying value of OMSR associated with loans that actually prepay is also
charged against servicing fee income as amortization. As a result of the latter charges, there may be
considerable variation in amortization of OMSR from period to period depending on actual customer
prepayment activity. In general, however, variations in the amortization of OMSR will offset to some
degree opposite changes in gains or losses on sales of single-family mortgage loans, as previously
described (refer to “Loans Held for Sale™).

The carrying value of OMSR recorded in PSB’s Consolidated Balance Sheets (“mortgage servicing rights”
or “MSRs”) 1s subject to impairment because of changes in loan prepayment expectations and in market
discount rates used to value the future cash flows associated with such assets. In valuing MSRs, PSB
stratifics the loans by year of origination, term of the loan, and range of interest rates within each term. If,
based on a periodic evaluation, the estimated fair value of the MSRs related to a particular stratum is
determined to be less than its carrying value, a valuation allowance is recorded against such stratum and
against PSB’s loan servicing fee income, which is included as a component of mortgage banking revenue.
A valuation allowance is not recorded if the estimated fair value ol a stratum excecds its carrying value.
Because of this inconsistent treatment, PSB may be required to maintain a valuation allowance against
MSRs even though the estimated fair valuc of PSB’s total MSR portfolio exceeds its carrying value in total.
The valuation allowance is calculated using the current outstanding principal balance of the related loans,
long-term prepayment assumptions as provided by independent sources, a market-based discount rate, and
other management assumptions related to future costs to service the loans, as well as ancillary sources of
income.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

As a member of the FHLB system, PSB is required to hold stock in the FHLB based on asset size and the
anticipated level ol borrowings to be advanced to PSB. This stock is recorded at cost, which approximates
fair value. The stock is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. Transfer of the stock is substantially
restricted.



Bank-Owned Life Tnsurance

PSB has purchased life insurance policies on certain officers. Bank-owned life insurance is recorded at its
cash surrender value. Changes in cash surrender value are recorded in other income.

Retirement Plans

PSB maintains a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan which covers substantially all full-time
employees.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes have been provided under the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilitics as measured by the enacted tax rates which will be in cffect when these differences are expected
to reverse. Deferred tax expense is the result of changes in the deferred tax assct and liability and is a
component of the provision for income taxes.

Advertising and Promotional Costs
Costs relating to PSB’s advertising and promotion are generally expensed when paid.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

All derivative instruments are recorded at their fair values. If derivative instruments are designated as
hedges of fair values, both the change in the fair value of the hedge and the hedged item are included in
current carnings. Fair value adjustments related to cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
income and reclassified to carnings when the hedged transaction is reflected in earnings, Ineffective
portions of hedges are rellected in income.

Rate Lock Commitments

PSB enters into commitments to originate loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is determined prior to
funding (rate lock commitments). Rate lock commitments on mortgage loans that are intended to be sold
are considered to be derivatives. Rate lock commitments are recorded only to the extent of fees received
since recording the estimated fair value of these commitments would not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions
as more fully disclosed separately. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of signilicant
Judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of
broad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly
affect the estimates. The fair valuc estimates of existing on- and off-balance-sheet financial instruments do
not include the value of anticipated future busincss or the values of assets and liabilities not considered
financial instruments.

»

Segment Information

PSB, through a branch network of its banking subsidiary, provides a full range of consumer and
commercial banking services to individuals, businesses, and farms in north central Wisconsin. These
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services include demand, time, and savings deposits; safc deposit services; credit cards; notary services;
night depository; money orders, traveler’s checks, and cashicr’s checks; savings bonds; sccured and
unsecured consumer, commercial, and real estate loans; ATM processing; cash management; and financial
planning. While PSB’s chiel decision makers monitor the revenue streams of various PSB products and
services, operations are¢ managed and financial performance is evaluated on a companywide basis.
Accordingly, all of PSB’s banking operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one
reportable operating scgment.

Stock-Based Compensation

GAAP encourages all entities to adopt a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock
compensation plans, whereby compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the value of the
award and is recognized over the service period, which is usually the vesting period. At December 31,
2005, GAAP also allows an entity to continuc to measure compensation cost for these plans using the
intrinsic value based method of accounting, whereby compensation cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted
market price of the stock at the grant date over the amount an employee must pay Lo acquire the stock.
However, effective during the quarter ending March 31, 2006, GAAP will change to require all stock-based
compensation to be reflected in income (refer to “Future Accounting Changes™).

During the three years ended December 31, 2005, PSB followed the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and used the “intrinsic value method” of
recording stock-based compensation cost. Becausc stock options are granted with an exercise price equal
to fair valug at the date of grant, no compensation expense was recorded. There were no stock options
granted during the three years ended December 31, 2005.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in
net income. Certain changes in asscts and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities, are reported as a scparate component of the equity scction of the consolidated balance
sheets.

Future Accounting Changes

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board amended Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, Share-Based Payment, in part to require all share-based awards and compensation to be
reflected in earnings. The amendment is effective for PSB during the quarter ending March 31, 2006. The
change is not expected to have a material effect on PSB’s [inancial condition or results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation,

NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PSB is required to maintain a certain reserve balance, in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank,
based upon a percentage of deposits. The total required reserve balance was approximately $207 and
$3,330 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In the normal course of business, PSB maintains cash and due from bank balances with correspondent

banks. Accounts at each institution arc insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$100,000. PSB also maintains cash balances in money market funds. Such balances are not insured.



Uninsured cash and cash equivalent balances totaled $14,306 and $13,145 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

NOTE 3 SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities are as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2005
U.S. Treasury securities and

obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $23,529 $ 4 $ 298 $23.235
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 26,040 370 240 26,170
Mortgage-backed securitics 6,954 0 170 6,784
Collatcralized mortgage obligations 23,534 0 520 23,014
Nonrated trust preferred sccurities 2,250 0 0 2,250
Other equity securities 48 0 0 48
Totals $82,355 $374 $1,228 $81,501
December 31, 2004
U.S. Treasury securities and

obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencics $ 7,785 $ 37 $ 51 $ 7,771
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 24,089 893 99 24,883
Mortgage-backed securities 6,119 38 16 6,141
Collateralized mortgage obligations 28,024 11 234 27,801
Nonrated trust preferred securities 2,250 0 0 2,250
Other equity securities 48 0 0 48
Totals $68,315 $979 $ 400 $68,894

Fair valucs of securities are estimatcd based on financial models or prices paid for similar securities.
It is possible intcrest rates could change considerably resulting in a material changg in the estimated
fair value.
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The following table indicates the amount of months securities that are considered to be temporarily
impaired have been in an unrealized loss position at December 31.

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2005

U.S. Treasury securities and

obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencics $17,785 $172 $ 3374 $126 $21,159 $ 298
Obligations of stales and

political subdivisions 4,534 81 4,765 159 9,299 240
Mortgage-backed securities 5,094 115 1,690 55 6,784 170
Collateralized mortgage obligations 4.332 67 18,682 453 23,014 520
Total temporarily impaired securities $31,745 $435 $28,511 $793 $60,256 $1,228

2004

U.S. Treasury securities and

obligations of U.8. government

corpotations and agencies ¥ 3,449 $51 $ 0 $ 0 § 3,449 $ 51
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 4,535 87 416 12 4,951 99
Morigage-backed securitics 2,093 14 190 2 2,283 16
Collateralized mortgage obligations 17,693 180 6,595 54 24,288 234
Total tcmporarily impaired securitics $27,770 $332 $ 7,201 § 68 $34,971 § 400

At December 31, 2005, 111 debt securities have unrcalized losses with aggregate depreciation of 2.0%
from the amortized cost basis. At December 31, 2004, 62 debt securities had unrealized losses with
aggregate depreciation of 1,1% from the amortized cost basis. These unrealized losses relate principally to
the increase in interest rates and are not due to changes in the financial condition of the issuers. In
analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by a
government body or agency, whether a rating agency has downgraded the securitics, and industry analysts’
reports. Since management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity (or the foreseeable future
for securitics available for sale), no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

65




The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities available for sale at December 31, 2005, by
contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right 1o call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Due in one year or less $6,042 $6,024
Due after one year through five years 29,908 29,854
Due after five years through ten years 13,619 13,527
Due after ten years 2,250 2,250
Subtotals 51,819 51,655
Mortgage-backed securities and

collateralized mortgage obligations 30,488 29,798
Totals $82,307 $81,453

Securities with a fair value of $22,950 and $27,982 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were
pledged to secure public deposits and other borrowings and for other purposes required by law,

During 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, proceeds {rom the sale of securities totaled $206, $4,926, and
$8,839 with gross gains of $6, $111, and $107, with no gross losscs for 2005, and gross losses of $14 and
$27 during 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 4 LOANS

The composition of loans at December 31 categorized by the initial purpose of the loan is as follows:

2005 2004
Commerecial, industrial, and municipal $ 86,070 $ 72,456
Commercial real estate mortgage 149,538 145,856
Residential real estatc mortgage 87,205 82,696
Real estate construction 46,259 38,308
Residential real estatc home equity 13,058 11,620
Consumer and individual 5,919 6,482
Subtotals 388,049 357,418
Net deferred loan costs 434 368
Loans in process of disbursement (11,892) (9,700)
Allowance for loan losses (4,180) (4,157)
Net loans receivable $372,411 $343,923

PSB originates and holds adjustable rate residential mortgage loans and commercial purpose loans with
variable rates of interest. The rate of interest on some of these loans is capped over the life of the loan, At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, PSB held $32,397 and $19,844, respectively, of variable rate loans with
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interest rate caps. Of these loans, $9,703 had reached the interest rate cap at December 31, 2005. None of
these loans had reached the interest rate cap at December 31, 2004.

PSB, in the ordinary course of business, grants loans to its executive officers and directors, including their
families and firms in which they are principal owners. All loans to executive officers and directors are
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with others and, in the opinion of management, did not involve more than the
normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. Activity in such loans is summarized
below:

2005 2004
Loans outstanding at beginning $ 4,750 $1,421
New loans 4,638 5,145
Repayments (3,628) (1,816)
Loans outstanding at end $ 5,760 $ 4,750

The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans and nonperforming loans:

December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $ 422 $ 133 $ 0
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 1,815 1,277 1,627
Total impaired loans $2,237 $1,410 $1,627
Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $ 195 $ 250 $ 255
Years ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Average recorded investment, net of allowance

for loan losses $2,428 $1,342 $1,419
Interest income recognized $ 183 $ 65 $ 105
Interest income recognized on a cash basis

on impaired loans § 78 $ 28 $ 65

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans,
Total loans receivable (including nonaccrual impaired loans) maintained on nonaccrual status as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $2,393 and $2,174, respectively. There were no loans past due 90 days
or more but still accruing income at December 31, 2005 and 2004.
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An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the three years ended December 31 follows:

2005 2004 2003
Balance, January | $4,157 $3,536 $3,158
Provision charged to operating expensc 160 855 835
Recoveries on loans 33 32 63
Loans charged off (170) (266) (522)
Balance, December 31 $4,180 $4,157 $3,536

Under a secondary market loan servicing program with the F HLB, PSB in exchange for a monthly fec
provides a credit enhancement guarantee to reimburse the FHLB for foreclosure losses in excess of 1% of
original loan principal sold to the FALB. At December 31, 2005, PSB serviced payments on $169,708 of
first lien residential loan principal for the FHLB. At December 31, 2005, the maximum PSB obligation for
such guarantees would be approximatcly $1,132 if total foreclosurc losses on the entire pool of loans
exceed approximately $3,300. Management believes the likelihood of a reimbursement for loss payable to
the FHLB to be remote and does not maintain any recourse liability for possible losses.

NOTE 5 MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS
Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The

unpaid principal balances of mortgage loans serviced for FHLB and others were $170,091 and $160,225 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The following is a summary of changes in the balance of

MSR:
Originated Valuation
MSR Allowance Total

Balance at January 1, 2003 $812 $(1135) $697
Additions from originated servicing 792 0 792
Amortization charged to earnings (700) 0 (700)
Change in valuation allowance

charged to earnings 0 25 25
Balance at December 31, 2003 904 (90) 814
Additions from originated servicing 334 0 334
Amortization charged to earnings (293) 0 (293)
Change in valuation allowance

charged to earnings 0 (16) (16)
Balance at December 31, 2004 945 (106) 839
Additions from originated scrvicing 269 0 269
Amortizalion charged to eamnings (235) 0 (235)
Change in valuation allowance

charged 10 earnings 0 7 7
Balance at December 31, 2005 $979 $ (99 $880
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NOTE 6 PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The composition of premises and equipment follows:

2005 2004
Land $ 2,692 $ 2,620
Buildings and improvements 9,241 8,376
Furniture and equipment 5,089 4,321
Construction in progress 0 639
Total cost 17,022 15,956
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization 4,390 3,524
Totals $12,632 $12,432

Depreciation and amortization charged to operating expenses amounted to $866 in 2005, $767 in 2004, and
$513 in 2003.

During 2004, PSB placed in service a new $4.8 million main office and incurred a one-time charge for
abandonment of premises and equipment of $329 as the prior home office located on the same property was
razed. Also during 2004, PSB closed a Rhinelander, Wisconsin, branch in leased space and accrued $50
for abandonment of premises and equipment to remove leasehold improvements and mect other termination
requirements.

Lease Commitments

PSB leases various pieces of equipment under cancelable leases and office space for one branch location
under a noncancelable lease. PSB has the option to renew the noncancelable branch location lease for two
additional two-year terms upon expiration in May 2008. The lease is classified as operating. Future
minimum payments under the noncancelable lcase are as follows:

2006 $ 46
2007 47
2008 21
Total $114

Rental expense for all operating leases was $63, $89, and $84, for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively.
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NOTE 7 DEPOSITS

The distribution of deposits at December 31 is as follows:

2005 2004
Non-interest-bearing demand $ 61,345 $ 51,635
Interest-bearing demand (NOWs) 53,108 38,329
Savings 26,536 26,245
Money market 66,625 68,666
Retail time 123,799 119,452
Wholesale market and national time 69,123 53,898
Total deposits $400,536 $358,225

The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2005, are summarized as follows:

2006 $106,353
2007 35,827
2008 23,222
2009 8,463
2010 15,069
Thereaficr 3,988
Total $192.922

Time deposits with individual balances of $100 and over totaled $121,997 and $104,763 at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively,

Deposits from PSB directors, officers, and related parties at December 31, 2005 and 2004 totaled $4,399
and $4,397, respectively,
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NOTE 8 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

FHLB advances at December 31, consist of the following:

Weighted
Scheduled Range of Average
Maturity Rates Rate Amount
2005
Fixed rate, interest only 2006 3.57-3.74% 3.68% $ 6,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2007 2.63-4.72% 3.39% 9,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2008 3.90-5.07% 4.35% 10,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2009 3.48-4.50% 3.94% 17,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2010 4.34-4.88% 4.54% 12,000
Totals 4.03% $54,000
2004
Fixed rate, interest only 2005 242-6.21% 5.17% $26,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2007 2.63% 2.63% 5,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2008 3.90-5.07% 4.34% 8,000
Fixed rate, interest only 2009 3.48-4.19% 3.76% 13,000
Totals 4.45% $52,000

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, fixed rate advances maturing during 2008 include a $3,000 advance at a
rate of 5.07% that is callable by the FHLB,

FHLB advances arc subject to a prepayment penalty il they are repaid prior to maturity. PSB may draw
upon a FIILB open line of credit up to approximately 75% of unencumbered 1-4 family residential first
mortgage loans pledged as collateral out of its portfolio. The FHLB advances are also secured by $3,017
and $2,874 of FHLB stock owned by the Bank at Decerber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. PSB may
draw both short-term and long-term advances on a maximum lin¢ of credit totaling approximately $81,616
bascd on residential real estate mortgage collateral totaling $110,343 as of December 31, 2003, At
December 31, 2005, PSB’s available and unused portion of this line of credit totaled approximately
$27,616. PSB also has, under a current agreement with the FHLB, an ability to borrow up to $27,081 by
pledging sccurities available for sale.

NOTE 9 OTHER BORROWINGS

Other borrowings consist of securities sold under both short-term and long-term repurchase agreements
totaling $4,497 and $8,565 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

PSB pledges various securities available for sale as collateral for repurchasc agreements. The fair value of
securities pledged for repurchase agreements totaled $4,141 and $9,328 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Due to unusually large short-term increases by some municipal repurchase customers from
year-end tax collections, securities pledged as collateral at December 31, 2005 were less than the
repurchase account balance by a net of $356 (8% of repurchase agreements). Necessary additional
collateral was pledged in January 2006 as part of the PSB’s normal collateralization revicw procedures.
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The following information relates (o federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase
agrecments for the years ended December 31:

2005 2004 2003
As of end of year:
Weighted average rate 2.76% 2.68% 2.39%
For the year:
Highest month-end balance $16,038 $20,826 $13,463
Daily average balance $ 8,739 $11,824 $ 9,151
Weighted average rate 3.11% 2.28% 2.50%

There were no related-party repurchase agreements at December 31, 2005. Repurchase agreements with
related parties totaled $39 at December 31, 2004.

NOTE 10 JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

PSB Holdings Statutory Trust [ (the “Trust”), a Delaware business trust wholly owned by PSB, completed
the sale of $7,500 of Trust Preferred Securitics to a pooling vehicle of other trust preferred securitics whose
shares were later sold to private investors (a pooled trust preferred offering). The Trust used the proceeds
from the offering and the issuance of $232 of common stock ownership in the Trust to purchase $7,732 of
PSB Junior Subordinated Debentures from PSB,

The Trust Preferred Securities mature in 30 years and have an initial fixed rate of 5.82% until September
2010. Following September 2010, the rate is adjusted quarterly to the three-month London InterBank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.70%. Total interest expense on the junior subordinated debenture was $231
in 2005. Dividends received on common stock of the Trust were $6 in 2005, The Trust Preferred
Securitics may be called in part or in full on September 15, 2010, and quarterly thereafter, with 30 days
notice. The Trust Preferred Securities are mandatorily redeemable upon the maturity of the Debentures on
September 15, 2035, or upon carlier redemption.

PSB has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all the obligations of the Trust. The guarantee covers the
quarterly distributions and payments on liquidation or redemption of the Trust Preferrcd Securitics, but
only to the extent of funds held by the Trust. The Trust Preferred Securities qualify under the risk-based
capital guidclines as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. PSB used the proceeds from the sales of the
debentures for general corporate purposcs and to support continued assct growth through funding
qualifying as regulatory capital.

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

PSB has established a 401(k) profit sharing plan for its employees. PSB matches 50% of employees’ salary
deferrals up to the first 6% of pay deferred. PSB also may declare a discretionary profit sharing
contribution. The expense recognized for contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004, and 2003 was $315, $313, and $327, respectively.

PSB maintains deferred compensation agreements with certain vice presidents and other senior execulives
at December 31, 2005. PSB matches 20% of the amount of employces' salary deferrals up to the first 15%
of pay deferred. Two key executives also receive additional matchin g and incentive contributions under
the plan based on average asset growth. PSB directors may elect to defer earned directors lees into a
separate deferred directors' fees plan. No PSB match is made on dircctors fees deferred. Cumulative
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deferred balances earn a crediting rate gencrally equal to 50% of PSB's return on average equity. The
agreements provide for annual benefits paid in a lump sum at retirement or in monthly installments for a
15-year period commencing the month following each participant’s normal retirement date. PSB is
accruing this liability for the participants over the remaining periods of service. The liability outstanding
under the agreements was $655 and $334 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The amount
charged to operations was $127, $18, and $8 for 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

PSB maintained an unfunded, postretirement health care benefit plan which covered the officers of PSB,
After retirement, PSB would pay between 25% and 50% of the health insurance premiums for former PSB
olficers until the officer reached age 65 or the qualifying age for Medicare coverage. To qualify, an officer
must have had at least 15 years of service, been employed by PSB at retirement, and must have been at
least 62 years of age at retirement. The actual amount paid was based upon years of service to PSB.
During 2003, the plan’s benelits were changed to cover the benefit period noted above. Prior to 2003, plan
benefits continued until the officer’s death. Retirecs currently receiving benefits were unaffected by this
change and, therefore, would receive benefits until their death.

During 2005, the plan was again changed to remove all benefits for officers currently employed and not yet
in retirement. Retirees currently receiving benefit payments under the plan were unaffected by the change.
Concurrently, an agreement was made with three current officers so that PSB will pay 50% of the health
insurance premiums until the officer reaches age 65 or the qualifying age for Medicare coverage if the
officer retires from PSB after reaching age 62. At December 31, 2005, there were four retirees receiving
benefits under the plan who will continue to receive benefits until their death. The current liability for
future benefits to officers who were removed from the plan in 2005 was insignificant, and no gain on
curtailment of the postretirement benefit plan was recorded during 2005.

The liability for future postretirement plan health care benefits was $248 and $272 at December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Postretirement health care benefit plan expense was $8, $26, and $62 in 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the impact of the curtailment of plan benetits during 2003.

Before Effect of After Plan
Plan Change  Plan Change Change

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:

Retirces $214 $ 0 $214
Other actives 384 (322) 62
Total 598 (322) 276
Unrecognized net loss (169) 169 0
Unrecognized prior service cost (44) 22 (22)
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation 5385 $(131) $254
NOTE 12 SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN

PSB has established an employee medical benefit plan to self-insure claims up to $30 per year for each
individual with a $604 stop-loss per year for participants in the aggregate. Coverages in 2006 will be $30
per individual and $783 in the aggregate. PSB and its covered employees contribute to the fund to pay the
claims and stop-loss premiums. Medical benelfit plan costs are expensed as incurred. The liability
recognized for claims incurred but not yet paid was $54 and $58 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,




respectively. Health insurance expense recorded in 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $516, $389, and $377

respectively.

NOTE 13 INCOME TAXES

?

The components of the provision for income taxes arc as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Current income tax provision:

Federal $1,533 $1,258 $2,003

State 304 575 297
Total current 1,837 1,833 2,300
Deferred income tax cxpense (benefit):

Federal 155 73 1

State 45 (50) (N
Total deferred 200 23 0
Total provision for income taxes $2,037 $1,856 $2,300

A summary of the source of differences between income taxes at the federal statutory rate and the provision
for income taxes for the years ended December 31, follows:

2005 2004 2003
Percent Percent Percent
of of of
Pretax Pretax Pretax
Amount Income Amount Income Amount Tncome
Tax cxpense at
statutory rate $2,168 34.0 $1,830 34.0 $2.416 34.0
Increase (decrease)
in taxes resulting from;
Tax-exempt
interest (370) (5.8) (37 (6.9) (342) (4.8)
Bank owned
life insurance (54) 0.9) 0 0.0 0 0.0
State income tax 230 3.6 347 6.4 195 2.7
Other 63 1.0 50 1.0 31 0.5
Provision for income
taxes $2,037 319 $1,856 34.5 $2,300 324




Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and
the tax basis of PSB’s assets and liabilities. The major components of the net deferred tax assets are as
follows:

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $1,426 $1,422
Deferred compensation and director’s fees 263 146
State net operating loss 55 39
Postrctirement health care benefits 98 107
Employee pension plan 8 13
Unrealized loss on securitics available for sale 312 0
Other 0 22
Valuation allowancces (55) (39)
Gross deferred tax assets 2,107 1,710
Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and cquipment 576 402
Mortgage servicing rights 347 330
FHLB stock 326 269
Deferred net loan origination costs 176 151
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 0 195
Prepaid expenscs 70 58
Gross deferred tax liabilities 1,495 1,405
Net deferred tax asset $ 612 $ 305

PSB and its subsidiary bank pay state income taxes on individual, unconsolidated net earnings. At
December 31, 2005, net operating loss carryforwards of the parent company of approximately $1,029
existed to offset {uture state taxable income. These net operating losses will begin to expire in 2012. A
valuation allowance has been recognized to adjust deferred tax assets to the amount of net operating losses
expected to be utilized to offset future income. If realized, the tax benefit for this item will reduce current
tax expense for that period. The valuation allowance increased $16 and $6 in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

During 2004, PSB resolved a Wisconsin state income tax audit initiated during 2003. Like many
Wisconsin financial institutions, PSB has a Nevada-based subsidiary that holds and manages investment
assets which have not been subject to Wisconsin tax. The Wisconsin Department of Revenue (the
“Department”) instituted an audit program specifically aimed at out-of-state bank subsidiaries. The
Department took the position that a portion of the income of the out-of-state subsidiaries is taxable in
Wisconsin. After consideration of the cost to litigate and the potential risk of a substantial loss in litigation,
PSB decided to accept a standardized settlement offered by the Department to Wisconsin banks with out-
of-statc subsidiaries with no admission of wrongdoing. The settlement increased the provision for income
taxes after federal benefits by $150. PSB continues to operate the subsidiary to manage a portion of the
Bank’s investment security portfolio.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has audited PSB’s federal income tax returns for 1999 through 2002,
and has disallowed a portion of Peoples State Bank’s (the “Bank”™) interest deductions for such ycars. The
IRS asserts that PSB owes an additional $184 of tax and intercst (computed through November 15, 2005).
The IRS’s contention is that municipal bonds owned by the Bank’s Nevada investment subsidiary should
be treated as owned by the Bank for purposcs of computing the Bank’s allowable intcrest expense. The
IRS has made the same adjustment for other Wisconsin banks that have Nevada investment subsidiaries. In




August 2005, PSB filed a petition with the United States Tax Court contesting such adjustment. PSB
believes all tax returns are correct as filed and, at this time, no additional tax expense for this adjustment
has been recorded.

NOTE 14 HEDGING ACTIVITIES

PSB has asset/liability policies that include guidelines for measuring and monitoring interest rate risk.
Within these guidelines, parameters have been established for maximum fluctuations in net interest income,
Possible fluctuations are measured and monitored using simulation modeling. The policies provide for the
use of derivative instruments and hedging activities (o aid in managing interest rate risk to within the policy
parameters,

PSB’s assets include a significant portion of variable rate loans which are funded by wholesalc fixed rate
brokered certificates of deposit. As such, PSB may periodically enter in derivative financial instruments to
mitigate exposures to fluctuations in the cash flow of loans and/or the fair value of deposits from changes
In interest rates. Tnterest rate swap arrangements may be utilized to hedge against these fluctuations.

During 2005, PSB enitered into an intercst rate swap contract classified as a fair value hedge that converts
the fixed rate payments on certain wholesale broker certificates of’ deposit to variable rates of interest. The
interest rate risk management strategy is to change fixed brokered time deposit interest payments to a
floating rate payment to better match adjustable rate commercial loans. The swap was not fully effective in
2005. Both the swap (by the swap counterparty) and the liability (by PSB) are callable in April 2006, with
additional semiannual call dates until final maturity in October 2008,

Summary information about interest rate swaps at December 31, 2005 follows:

Notional amount $10,000
Weighted average pay rate 4.35%
Weighted average receive rate 4.25%
Weighted average final maturity - Years 275
Fair value liability of swap § le8
NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CREDIT RISK

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Credit Risk

PSB is a party to financial instraments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instrurments include commitments to extend credit
and standby letters of credit. Thosc instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the balance shects.
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PSB’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of
those instruments. PSB uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations
as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. These commitments at December 31 are as follows:

2005 2004

Commitments to extend credit $53,041 $48,566
Commercial standby letters of credit - Variable rate 197 1,499
Unused home equity lines of credit - Variable rate 12,970 11,437
Unused credit card commitments - Variable rate 3,606 3,367
Credit enhancement under the FHLB of Chicago

Mortgage Partnership Finance program 1,132 743
Totals $70,946 $65,612

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have lixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses. Since many of the commitments are expected o expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requircments. PSB evaluates each
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral oblained, if deemed
necessary upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit cvaluation of the party. Collateral
held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, and cquipment, and income-
producing commercial properties.

Letters of credit arc conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The
credit risk involved inissuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
tacilities to customers. Collateral held varies as specified above and is required in instances which PSB
deems necessary. The commitments are generally structured to allow for 100% collateralization on all
letters of credit.

Credit card commitments are commitments on credit cards issued by PSB and serviced by Elan Financial
Services (a subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp). These commitments are unsecured.

Concentration of Credit Risk

PSB grants residential mortgage, commercial, and consumer loans predominantly in Marathon, Oneida, and
Vilas Counties, Wisconsin. There are no significant concentrations of credil to any one debtor or industry
group. Management believes the diversity of the local economy will prevent significant losses in the event
of an economic downturn.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, PSB is involved in various legal proccedings. In the opinion of

management, any liability resulting from such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 16 STOCK OPTION PLAN

Under the terms of an incentive stock option plan adopted during 2001, shares of unissued common stock
are reserved for options to officers and key employees of PSB at prices not less than the fair market value
of the shares at the date of the grant. Options may be exercised anytime after the option grant’s
six-month anniversary. These options expire ten years after the grant date. As of December 31, 2005, all
20,971 options outstanding were eligible to be exercised with 16,126 options exercisable at $15.83 per
share and 4,845 options exercisable at $16.81 per share. The following table summarizes information
regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 and activily during the three years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Weighted
Avcerage
Shares Price
January 1, 2003 28,237 $16.00
Options granted 0
Options exercised 0
December 31, 2003 28,237 16.00
Options granted 0
Options exercised (3,964) 15.83
December 31, 2004 24,273 16.00
Options granted 0
Options exercised (3,058) 15.83
Option forfeited (244) 15.83
December 31, 2005 20,971 $16.06

As of December 31, 2005, no additional sharcs of common stock remain reserved for future grants to
officers and key employees under the option plan approved by the shareholders.

NOTE 17 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

PSB and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory —and
possibly additional discretionary—actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on PSB’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, PSB and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of assets, liabilitics, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require PSB and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier I capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted asscts (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average
assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2005, that PSB and the Bank meet all
capital adequacy requirements.
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As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well-
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well-
capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios
as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes
have changed the Bank’s category.

PSB’s and the Bank’s actual and regulatory capital amounts and ratios are as follows:

To Be Well-
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actunal Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2005:
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets):
Consolidated $47.619 12.12% $31,432 8.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $46,932 11.95% $31,419 8.00% $39.274  10.00%
Tier I capital (to risk
weighted assets):
Consolidated $43,439  11.06% $15,725 4.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $42,752 10.88% $15,718 4.00% $23,577 6.00%
Tier I capital (to
average assets):
Consolidated $43,439 8.71% $19.949  4.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $42,752 8.58% $19,931 4.00% $24,914 5.00%
As of December 31, 2004:
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets):
Consolidated $37,305 10.65% $28,017 8.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $36,745  10.49% $28,017 8.00% $35,021 10.00%
Tier I capital (to risk
weighted assets):
Consolidated $33,148 9.46% $14,008 4.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $32,588 9.30% $14,008  4.00% $21,013 6.00%
Tier I capital (to
average assets):
Consolidated $33,148 7.40% $17,918 4.00% n/a n/a
Peoples State Bank $32,588 7.27% $17,856  4.00% $22,320 5.00%

NOTE 18 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share data are based on the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share are further adjusted for potential common
shares that were dilutive and outstanding during the period. Potential common shares consist of stock
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options outstanding under the incentive plan, The dilutive effect of potential common shares is computed
using the treasury stock method. All stock options are assumed to be 100% vested for purposes of the
earnings per share computations. The computation of earnings per share for the years ended December 31
are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Weighted average shares outstanding 1,714,648 1,725,136 1,740,106
Effect of dilutive stock options outstanding 10,096 14,757 12,854
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 1,724,744 1,739,893 1,752,960
Basic earnings per share $2.53 $2.04 $2.76
Diluted earnings per share $2.52 $2.03 $2.74

On December 16, 2003, PSB declared a 5% stock dividend to stockholders of record on January 6, 2004,
which was paid on January 29, 2004. All references in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
to the number of common shares and per share amounts for 2005, 2004, and 2003 have been restated to
reflect the 5% stock dividend.

NOTE 19 RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

The subsidiary Bank is restricted by banking regulations from making dividend distributions above
prescribed amounts and is limited in making loans and advances to PSB. At December 3 1, 2005, the
retained earnings of the subsidiary bank available for distribution as dividends without regulatory approval
was approximately $15,513,

NOTE 20 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value arc described as follows:

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, other short-term borrowings,
FHLB stock, accrued interest receivable and payable, bank-owned life insurance, demand deposits, and
variable rate loans or deposits that reprice frequently and fully. Security fair values are based on market
prices or dealer quotes, and if no such information is available, on the rate and term of the security and
information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans or deposits and for variable rate loans, or deposits with
infrequent repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current market
rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values. Fair value of loans held for sale is based on
market quotes. Fair value of FHLB advances and junior subordinated debentures is based on current rates
for similar financing. The fair valuc of interest rate swaps is based on market prices or dealer quotes. Fair
value of mortgage servicing rights is based on discounted cash flows over the anticipated repayment term
of serviced loans. The fair value of off-balance-sheet credit-related items is not significant.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of PSB’s {inancial instruments consisted of the following at
December 31:

2005 2004

Carrying Estimated Carrying KEstimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $26,604 $26,604 $23,324 $23.324
Securities 81,501 81,501 68,894 68,894
Net loans receivable 372,411 367,790 344,265 343,463
Accrued interest receivable 2,245 2,245 1,744 1,744
Mortgage servicing rights &80 880 839 839
FIILB stock 3,017 3,017 2,874 2,874
Cash surrender value of life insurance 4,805 4,805 0 0
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 400,536 398,455 358,225 357,566
FHLB advances 54,000 52,963 52,000 51,964
Other borrowings 4,497 4,460 8,565 8,548
Junior subordinated debentures 7,732 7,484 0 0
Accrued interest payable 1,277 1,277 891 891

NOTE 21 CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following condensed balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and condensed statements of
income and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, for PSB Holdings, Inc.
should be rcad in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and footnotes.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets 2005 2004
Cash and due from banks $ 1,109 $ 1,044
Investment in Peoples State Bank 42,298 33,056
Other assets 359 32
TOTAL ASSETS $43,766 $34,132

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Junior subordinated debentures $ 7,732 $ 0
Accrued dividends payable 529 516
Other liabilities 20 0
Total stockholders’ equity 35,485 33,616
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $43,766 $34,132
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Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

2005 2004 2003

Income:

Dividends from Peoples State Bank $1,875 $1,822 $1,361

Dividends from other investments 16 10 20

Interest 6 3 4

Total income 1,897 1,835 1,385
Expenses:

Interest expense on junior subordinated debentures 231 0 0

Transfer agent and shareholder communication 38 42 40

Other 65 78 74

Total expenses 334 120 114
Income before income taxes and equity in

undistributed net income of Peoples State Bank 1,563 1,715 1,271
Provision for income tax benefit (109) (29 (30)
Net income before equity in undistributed

net income of Peoples State Bank 1,672 1,744 1,301
Equity in undistributed net income of

Peoples State Bank 2,668 1,782 3,505
Net income $4,340 $3,526 $4,806
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Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Increase (decrease) in cash and due from
banks:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $4,340 $3,526 $4,806
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed net income of
Peoples State Bank (2,668) (1,782) (3,505)
(Increase) decrease in other assets (76) 0 2
Increase in other liabilities 20 0 0
Increase (decrease) in dividends payable 13 14 (123)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,629 1,758 1,180
Cash flows from investing activities -
Investment in Peoples State Bank (7,500) 0 0
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated
debentures 7,481 0 0
Dividends declared (1,060) (1,034) (998)
Proceeds from stock options issued
out of treasury 48 63 0
Proceeds from stock shares issued
to Peoples State Bank out of treasury
used to pay Directors’ fees 3 8 45
Purchase of treasury stock (536) (628) (553)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,936 (1,591) (1,506)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and due
from banks 65 167 (326)
Cash and due from banks at beginning 1,044 877 1,203
Cash and due from banks at end $1,109 $1,044 $877




Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

Thrce months ended

March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

2005
Interest income $5,964 $6,340 $6,6006 $6,854
Interest cxpense 2,444 2,758 3,098 3,355
Net interest income 3,520 3,582 3,508 3,499
Provision (credit) for loan losses 150 30 (50) 30
Noninterest income 803 947 906 812
Net income 1,040 1,171 1,066 1,063
Basic earnings per share * 0.60 0.68 0.62 0.62
Diluted earnings per share * 0.60 0.68 0.62 0.62

2004
Interest income $5,304 $5,458 $5,638 $5,802
Interest expense 1,830 1,941 2,117 2,225
Net interest income 3,474 3,517 3,521 3,577
Provision for loan losses 240 240 195 180
Noninterest income 740 855 764 764
Net income 954 782 747 1,043
Basic earnings per share * 0.55 045 0.43 0.61
Diluted earnings per share * 0.55 0.45 043 0.60

2003
Interest income $5,293 $5,258 $5,241 $5,258
Interest expense 2,061 1,990 1,935 1,883
Nel interest income 3,232 3,268 3,306 3,375
Provision for loan losses 225 240 240 130
Noninterest income 1,122 726 1,143 1,120
Net income 1,224 1,057 1,235 1,290
Basic carnings per share* 0.70 0.61 0.71 0.74
Diluted earnings per share* 0.70 0.60 0.71 0.74

* Basic and diluted earnings per share may not foot to the total for the year ended December 31 due to
rounding
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

Not applicable.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, management, under the
supervision, and with the participation, of PSB’s President and Chiel Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer (the Trcasurer), evaluated the effectivencss ol the design and operation of PSB’s
disclosure controls and procedures as defincd in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Based upon, and as of the datc of such evaluation, the President and Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that PSB’s disclosurc controls and procedures were
effective in all material respects.

| Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION,

Not applicable.
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PART II1
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Information relating to directors of PSB is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by this
reference to the disclosure in PSB’s proxy statement dated March 10, 2006 relating to the 2006 annual
meeting of stockholders (the “2006 Proxy Statement™) under the subcaption “Election of Directors —
Election of Dircctors,”

Information relating to the identification of executive officers of PSB is found in Part I of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Information required under Rule 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form
10-K by this reference to the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement under the subcaption “Beneficial
Ownership of Common Stock — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

Code of Ethics

PSB has adopted a Code of Ethics Policy for all directors, officers, and employees and a Code of
Compliance and Reporting Requirements for Senior Management and Senior Financial Officers which
covers PSB’s Chief Exccutive Officer, Treasurer (the chicf financial and accounting officer), cach Vice
President, and the Secretary. The Code of Compliance and Reporting Requircments for Senior
Management and Senior Financial Officers has been posted on PSB’s website under “Investor Relations” at
www.psbwi.com. Tn the event PSB amends or waives any provision of the Code of Compliance and
Reporting Requirements for Senior Management and Senior Financial Officers, PSB intends to disclose
such amendment or waiver at the website address where the code may also be found.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Mr. Polzer (Chairman), Mr. Crooks,
Mr. Fish, Mr. Gullickson, and Mr. Sonnentag serve on the Audit Committee (PSB is not a “listed issuer” as
defined in SEC Rule 10A-3).

Financial Expert

The SEC has adopted rules which require PSB to disclose whether one of the members of the Audit
Committee qualifies under SEC rules as an “audit committee financial expert.” Based on its revicw of the
SEC rules, the Board does not believe that any member of the Audit Committee can be classified as an
“audit committee financial expert.”

In order to qualify as an “audit committee financial expert,” a member of the Audit Committee must, for all
practical purposes, have the attributes and carcer experience of a person who has been actively involved in
the preparation, auditing, or evaluation of public company financial statements. PSB’s size and geographic
location make it difficult to recruit directors who have these specific qualifications. While it may be
possible 1o recruit a director having these specific qualifications, the Board believes that each of its
members should have a familiarity with PSB’s market arca and an understanding of PSB’s customer base,
in addition to meeting the other general criteria described in the 2006 Proxy Statement under “Clection of
Directors - Nominations ~ Qualifications,” and that it is not in the best interest of PSB to nominate a
director who does not posscss these characteristics. Moreover, the Committee has the authority under its
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charter to retain or dismiss the independent auditor and to hire such other experts or legal counsel as it
deems appropriate in order to fulfill its duties, and it therefore believes that it has access to required
{inancial expertise. The Board will consider any potential candidates who meet its current general
qualification criteria and those of an “audit committee financial expert,” but, for the time being, the Board
believes that the current members of the Committee, working with the independent auditor, are qualified to
perform the duties required in the Committee’s charter.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information relating to director compensation is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by this
reference to the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement under the subcaption “The Board of Directors —
Compensation of Directors.”

Information relating to the compensation of executive officers is incorporated into this Annual Report on
Form 10-K by this reference to (1) the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement beginning under the caption
“Executive Officer Compensation,” through the disclosure under the subcaption,

“— Employment and Change of Control Agreements,” and (2) the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement
under the subcaption “— Committce’s Report on Compensation Policies — Compensation Committee and
Board Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated
into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by this reference to the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement
beginning under the caption “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock™ and ending at the subcaption “—
Scction 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2005, information with respect to compensation plans
under which PSB’s common stock is authorized for issuance:

Plan catcgory Number of securities to Weighted-average Number of securities
be issued upon exercise exercise price of remaining available for
of outstanding options, outstanding options, future issuance under
warrants and rights warrants and rights equity compensation plans

(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders 20,971 $16.06 0
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders 0 n/a n/a
Total 20,971 . $16.06 _ 0
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Item 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

Information relating to certain relationships and related transactions with directors and officers is
incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by this reference to the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy
Statement under the subcaption “The Board of Directors — The Board — Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions.”

Item 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.
Information relating to the fees and services of PSB’s principal accountant is incorporated into this Annual
Report on Form 10-K by this reference to the disclosure in the 2006 Proxy Statement under the subcaptions

“Audit Committee Report and Related Matters -- Independent Auditor and Fees,” and “— Audit Committec
Pre-Approval Policies.”
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PART 1V

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM §-K.
(a) Documents filed as part of this report.

(1) The following consolidated financial statements of PSB and the Independent Auditors’ Report
thereon are filed as part of this report:

(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
(ii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003

(1if) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004, and 2003
@iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 20035, 2004,

and 2003
W) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) No financial statement schedules are required by Ttem 15(d).

(3) The following exhibits required by Ttem 601 of Regulation S-K are filed as part of this report.

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to PSB’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002)

32 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 21, 2006)

4.1 Indenture dated June 28, 2005 between PSB Holdings, Inc. as issuer, and Wilmington
Trust Company, as trustee, including the form of Junior Subordinated Debenture as
Exhibit A thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to PSB’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated June 28, 2005)

4.2 Guarantee Agreement dated Junc 28, 2005 between PSB Holdings, Inc., as guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as guarantee trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
1.2 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 28, 2005)

43 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated June 28, 2005 among PSB Holdings,
Inc., as sponsor, Wilmington Trust Company, as Institutional and Delaware Trustees, and
the Administrators named therein, including the form of trust preferred securities
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.3 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 28, 2005)

10.1 Bonus Plan of Directors of the Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PSB’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002)*
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Non-Qualified Retirement Plan for Dircctors of the Bank (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to PSB’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2001)*

Senior Management Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to PSB’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

2001 Stock Option Plan as amended March 15, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31,
2005)*

Employment and Change of Control Agreement with David K. Kopperud (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to PSB’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002)*

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement of David K. Kopperud (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 12, 2005)

Employment and Change of Control Agreement with David A. Svacina (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to PSB’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002)*

Amendment No. | to Employment Agreement of David A. Svacina (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 12, 2005)

Employment and Change of Control Agreement with Scott M. Cattanach (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2003)*

Amendment No. | to Employment Agreement of Scott M. Cattanach (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to PSB’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 12, 2005)

Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to
PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2003 )*

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Txhibit 10.9 to
PSB’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

Amendment to Executive Deferred Compensation Plan — David K. Kopperud
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2005)*

Amendment to Executive Deferred Compensation Plan — David A. Svacina (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2005)*

Incentive Deferred Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to PSB'’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*
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10.16  Survivor Income Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to PSB’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

10.17  Executive Officer Post Retirement Benefit Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to PSB’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)*

211 Subsidiaries of PSB (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to PSB’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000)

23.1 Consent of Wipfli LLP
31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2  Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certifications under Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
*Denotes Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements.

(b) Exhibils.
See Item 15(a)(3).

(c) Financial Schedules.

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requircments of Scction 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 10, 2006

PSB Holdings, Tnc.

By: DAVID K. KOPPERUD
David K. Kopperud, President
and Chief Executive Qfficer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on this 10th day of March,

2006.

Signature and Title

DAVID K. KOPPERUD

David K. Kopperud, President

Chief Executive Officer and a Director

DIRECTORS:

GORDON P. CONNOR

Gordon P. Connor

WILLIAM J. FISIT

William J. Fish

GORDON P. GULLICKSON

Gordon P. Gullickson

THOMAS R. POLZER

Thomas R. Polzer

WILLIAM M. REIF

William M. Reil’

Signature and Title

SCOTT M. CATTANACH

Scott M. Cattanach, Treasurer and CFO
(Principal Financial Officer and Accounting
Officer)

PATRICK L. CROOKS
Patrick L. Crooks

CHARLES A. GHIDORZI
Charles A, Ghidorzi

JOHN H. SONNENTAG
John H. Sonnentag

THOMAS A. RIISER
Thomas A. Riiser
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